
MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE 
GROUP

THURSDAY, 12 JULY 2018

A MEETING of the MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS TD6 0SA on THURSDAY, 

12 JULY 2018 at 2.00 pm

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

5 July 2018

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Order of Business 

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. Minute (Pages 3 - 6) 5 mins

Minute of the Meeting of the Major Contracts Governance Group held on 12 
April 2018 to be noted.  (Copy attached.)

SB CARES BUSINESS

5. SB Cares Financial Position 2018-19 Update (Pages 7 - 12) 10 mins

Consider report by the Finance and Commercial Director.  (Copy attached.)
6. Members' Report and Unaudited Financial Statements 2017-18 (Pages 

13 - 98)
10 mins

Consider report by Finance and Commercial Director.  (Copies attached.)
7. SB Cares Projects 2018-19 Update (Pages 99 - 106) 10 mins

Consider project delivery update report by Finance and Commercial 
Director.  (Copy attached.)

8. Care Inspection (Pages 107 - 110) 10 mins

Consider update report by SB Cares Operations Director on Inspections by 
the Care Inspectorate.  (Copy attached.)

9. Any Other Items Previously Circulated 

Public Document Pack



10. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent 

11. Items Likely To Be Taken In Private 

Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion 
should be approved:-

“That under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 
1973 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A 
to the aforementioned Act.”

12. Minute (Pages 111 - 114) 5 mins

Private section of the Minute of the Meeting of the Major Contracts 
Governance Group held on 12 April 2018 to be noted.  (Copy attached.)  

SB CARES BUSINESS

13. Commercial Development Update (Pages 115 - 118) 20 mins

Consider update report the Independent Living & Corporate Services 
Manager.  (Copy attached.)

SBc CONTRACTS BUSINESS

14. SBc Contracts Trading Operations Update at 31 March 2018 30 mins

Consider report by Chief Officer Roads.  (To follow.)

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors G. Turnbull (Chairman), G. Edgar, J. A. Fullarton, 
T. Miers, D. Moffat, E. Thornton-Nicol and T. Weatherston

Please direct any enquiries to Pauline Bolson  01835 826503
Email: pbolson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP

MINUTES of Meeting of the MAJOR 
CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP held 
in the Council Chamber, Council 
Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells on 
Thursday, 12 April 2018 at 10.00 am 

Present:- Councillors G. Turnbull (Chairman), G. Edgar, J. Fullarton, D. Moffat,  
E. Thornton-Nicol, T. Weatherston.

Absent:- Councillor T. Miers.
In Attendance:- P Barr (Managing Director SB Cares), L Crombie (Operations Director SB 

Cares), L Mirley (Finance and Commercial Director SB Cares), S Holmes 
(Principal Internal Auditor), D Macdonald (Finance Business Manager), 
Democratic Services Officer (P Bolson).

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Major Contracts Governance 
Group.

2. MINUTE 
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the meeting of the Major Contracts 
Governance Group of 7 November 2017.  

DECISION
NOTED the Minute for signature by the Chairman.

SB CARES BUSINESS

3. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTING
3.1 With reference to paragraph 4 of the Minute of 7 November 2017, there had been 

circulated copies of a report by the Business Partner Finance providing an update on the 
financial position as at 28 February 2018.  The Appendix to the report included details of 
the year to date spend against budget and against the previous year spend for both 
income and expenditure; the year to date spend by service heading; the balance sheet for 
the period; and the projected cash flow to 31 March 2018.  The report compared the 
financial performance against the reforecast surplus and noted that although there 
continued to be a shortfall in Spot Contract income, the expected outturn of £441k 
remained unchanged.  A further shortfall was anticipated for March 2018, again with no 
expected impact on the overall target surplus.  The report included a summary of the 
overall position in terms of costs relating to staff, transport, property/energy and other 
non-staff expenditure.  The report acknowledged that an increase in overtime payments at 
premium rates had been necessary for SB Cares to meet the challenges of maintaining 
staffing levels over the winter months however, the introduction of additional staff to the 
workforce had allowed the overall impact to be managed and it was anticipated the full 
year staff costs would remain within the agreed forecast.  Regular updates would be 
presented to the Major Contracts Governance Group.

3.2 In response to questions, Members were advised that transport costs were reviewed on a 
regular basis and options for electric cars were fully assessed to include purchase, lease 
and rental costs.  During the difficult winter conditions, clients were kept safe at all times 
and there were no missed visits recorded.  The commitment and professionalism of staff 
had been exceptional in ensuring the safety of their clients and staff were paid overtime 
as appropriate.  Other organisations such as Mountain Rescue had also assisted in 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



ensuring that clients received home visits as required.  Discussion followed in respect of 
transport; provision of a complete fleet management service; road conditions; and service 
provision.  Officers responded to questions from Members.

DECISION
NOTED the financial position and the management actions in hand.

4. SB CARES PROJECTS 2018-19
4.1 There had been circulated copies of a report by the Service Development Manager 

providing an update on the progress of projects within the Transformation Programme.  
Since the previous update, there had been a number of developments.  Members were 
advised that the transfer of the Alarms Service (Bordercare) along with other services 
such as emergency repairs to East Lothian had taken place at the end of March 2018.  
Members were advised that alarm service users would not experience any break in 
provision or change in the way they accessed assistance.  It was not currently anticipated 
that any staff would enter the redundancy or deployment processes.  Members were 
advised that there had previously been a large amount of manager time spent on 
scheduling the Home Care rotas but the new “four days on/four days off” simplified the 
process and now operated across all Home Care teams.  Possible further refinement of 
the system would be considered as required.  Testing and development was ongoing in 
respect of the Payroll report and it was acknowledged that further significant work was 
required in this regard.  Preparation of a procurement pack for additional cars for Home 
Care delivery was also currently underway.

4.2 Discussion followed and it was noted that service users had commented favourably on 
their satisfaction with the new service provision.  In response to a question on recruitment 
and retention, Ms Crombie advised Members that, in addition to traditional recruitment 
methods and word of mouth, SB Cares was working closely with Borders College and 
local schools in an effort to promote SB Cares and services it provided.  Members noted 
that there had been over 40 applications for Home Care posts across three areas and Ms 
Crombie further advised that the recruitment process was sometimes slowed down by the 
time taken for the Protecting Vulnerable Adults (PVG) procedure to be completed.  In 
terms of Scottish Social Services Council (SSSC) registration, this could take up to ninety 
days to complete and once registered, there was an expectation that staff would achieve 
SVQ at Level 2.  This project was still to be implemented across the Home Care Service.  

DECISION
NOTED:-

(a) the savings and investment; and

(b) the next steps and risks described for each project.

5. CARE INSPECTORATE 
With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of 7 November 2017, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by the Operations Director SB Cares giving the updated 
position on the inspection of SB Care services by the Care Inspectorate.  Members were 
advised that since the last report in November 2017, five inspections had taken place.  
Grade 5 was awarded to Waverley Care Home for three of the quality themes and Grade 
4 was given for Quality of Management and Leadership.  St Ronan’s Care Home was 
inspected and both quality themes assessed were awarded Grade 5.  Grove House Care 
Home had been inspected and all four themes were assessed, with Quality of Care and 
Support and Quality of Staffing both receiving Grade 5 and Quality of Environment and 
Quality of Management and Leadership each obtaining Grade 4.  Saltgreens Care Home 
had received an improved rating of Grade 5 for Quality of Care and Support, with other 
Grades being maintained at the previous levels.  Further details for all of the above Care 
Inspectorate reports were included in Appendix 1.  With regard to the final report for 
Home Care West, the three Themes that had been assessed received Grade 3.  This 
included a reduction in the Grade for Care and Support however, the challenges that the 

Page 4



Home Care Service had faced over recent months had been recognised by the 
Inspectors.  Feedback from the Inspectors had offered some positive and constructive 
feedback, including comment about improvements made to the recruitment process and 
the Induction and Training Programmes.  In terms of the focus of the Care Inspectorate 
reports, on occasion the emphasis appeared to be on the areas requiring improvement 
rather than on areas where good standards of care were provided and Members noted 
that this might be due to there being a limit of space available within the report template.  
Recently, this had led to some negative press coverage locally.  A draft report had been 
received for the East Home Care Service however, Members were informed that SB 
Cares considered that the report did not reflect the positive feedback received from the 
Inspectors and the report was therefore being challenged.  An updated report would be 
presented to the Committee in due course.  Discussion followed and the improvements in 
a number of service areas were acknowledged.  Members recognised the improvements 
that had been made and that it was noted that this information might be used to provide 
some positive comment in the public domain.  

DECISION
NOTED:-

(i) the improved grades contained in the report for Waverley Care Home;

(ii) the improved grades contained in the report for St Ronan’s Care Home; 

(iii) the improved grades contained in the report for Grove Care Home;

(iv) the improved grades contained in the report for Saltgreens Care Home;

(v) the report  for the Home Care West service; and

(vi) that the Home Care East service had been recently inspected.

6. NEW SERVICE DEVELOPMENTS
With reference to paragraph 7 of the Minute of 7 November 2017, the Operations Director 
provided a verbal update on the services currently being developed by SB Cares.  The 
Coldstream Community Model (previously referred to as Buurtzorg) had made progress 
and Members were advised that the trial would be developed further and an update 
reported to the Committee in due course.  Discussion followed in respect of the re-homing 
of patients and Members were advised that the Craw Wood facility had proved very 
successful, with staff using the time clients spent in the Unit to carry out comprehensive 
assessments prior to discharge.  Members were also advised of an insurance-led 
approach in the Netherlands whereby GPs could refer patients for a follow-on service and 
the actual care offered was then decided by the insurance company.  Further information 
about the proposed Enablement Service would be presented to Members in due course.

DECISION
NOTED the update.

7. SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS
7.1 The next meeting of the Major Contracts Governance Group would take place at 2.00pm 

on Tuesday 5 June 2018.

7.2 The schedule of meetings from August 2018 to June 2019 was presented as follows:-

18 September 2018
6 November 2018
5 March 2019
4 June 2019

All meetings would commence at 2.00pm.
Page 5



DECISION
NOTED the dates for future meetings.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 11.00am and reconvened at 11.10am.

8. PRIVATE BUSINESS 
DECISION
AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to 
exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business 
contained in the following items on the ground that they involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 6 and 8 of the part 1 of 
Schedule 7A to the Act. 

SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS

9. SB CARES BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2017/22
Members considered the SB Cares Business Plan for the period 2017/22.

10. MINUTE
Members considered the Private Section of the Minute of the Major Contracts 
Governance Group of 7 November 2017.

11. SBC CONTRACTS TRADING OPERATION UPDATE AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
Members considered the update report.

The meeting concluded at 12.25pm.

Page 6



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

SB CARES FINANCIAL POSITION 2018/19 - UPDATE

Report by Finance and Commercial Director

MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP

12 July 2018

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 To provide an update on the progress towards setting a detailed 
revised budget for SB Cares for 2018/19.  

1.2 There is still ongoing dialogue to finalise the expectations both in terms of 
service provision and financial impact to enable the Council’s Financial Plan 
2018/19 to be reflected in the SB Cares’ revised budget for 2018/19.

1.3 This report contains an update on the progress in agreeing the Efficiency 
Savings Target, the Main Contract Price for SBC and the potential influences 
of the Council’s wider Health & Social Care Budget.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Major Contracts Governance Group:

(a) Note the progress in updating the revised budget position for 
SB Cares; and

(b) Agree to the revised budget being presented at the next 
meeting of the Group.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 Scottish Borders Council agreed the Financial Plan 2018/19 (the Financial 
Plan) in February and contained within this were savings with direct 
implications for SB Cares presented under the Contracted Services section 
of the Financial Plan and potential further implications for services 
commissioned by Health and Social Care.

3.2 During the first quarter of 2018/19 there has been a full review of the 
deliverability of the savings to ensure that the Financial Plan is achieved by 
the Council and SB Cares’ has been involved in this review by the Council’s 
Corporate Management Team (CMT).

4 SB CARES FINANCIAL POSITION 2018/19

4.1 The position relating to the savings expectation from the Scottish Borders 
Council (SBC) has been further clarified and the base position for the main 
contract for the provision of services has been discussed with Social Work.  
However, there are still outstanding discussions to be held at the Council’s 
CMT and therefore these expectations are not yet agreed.

Main SBC Contract Price

4.2 A fundamental element of SB Cares budget is the main contract with 
Scottish Borders Council and the following table provides, at a high level the 
starting point, for 2018/19.

Movement from 
17/18 to 18/19Contract

2017/18 Inflation 17/18 
Efficiency 

Contract 
2018/19

 £'000  £'000  £'000 £'000
Older People Day Centres 650 13 (1) 662
LD, BDDS & HCSS 1,905 56 (78) 1,883
Care Homes 
(exc. Craw Wood)

5,101 135 (61) 5,175

Shopping Service 42 1 (25) 18
Homecare 
(inc. Dovecote/Night Support)

7,381 255 (146) 7,490

Bordercare & C.E.S. 1,072 20 (154) 938
Headquarters 587 19 - 606
Base Contract Price 16,738 499 (465) 16,772

4.3 Further to this base, Social Work have agreed at the last meeting to 
mainstream the additional costs arising from creating transitional bed 
capacity in Waverley Care Home.  In 2017/18 this adjustment was just 
under £100k.  Estimates for the 2018/19 costs are in the process of being 
agreed. 

Page 8



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

SB Cares Target Contract Contribution/Rebate 2018/19

4.4 As part of the Council-wide review of the Financial Plan’s deliverability, SB 
Cares have reviewed the proposals approved in February 2018.  The total 
savings identified in the Financial Plan for SB Cares was £852k.

4.5 The SB Cares’ Managing Director is still in discussion with the Council via 
CMT in relation to the final Target Efficiency Contribution that is projected 
for 2018/19.  The table below highlights the elements of savings that are in 
actively in progress.  These savings programmes will become part of the SB 
Cares Projects that contribute to the delivery of our Business Plan and will 
be monitored through the Projects monitoring report that will be brought to 
SB Cares’ Board and the Major Contracts Governance Group throughout the 
year.

18/19 
Savings 
Estimate

£000

Implement relief staff management tool 80
Implement equitable support worker structure in Care 
Homes

10

Review how Sleep-Ins are provided 40
Increase pool care fleet in Homecare 20
Review provision of fleet across all services 10
East Lothian Collaboration for the provision of Alarm 
Services

150

Review Bordercare and Community Equipment Service 
delivery structure

20

Improved Workforce Absence Management 75
Improved Workforce Additional Hours Management – 
avoiding Premium Overtime

75

Activities Underway towards the Contract 
Contribution/Rebate for 2018/19 480

4.6 The remaining savings to be found are challenging and the Board of 
Management is working closely with the Council’s CMT to move this forward.

4.7 Within the Council’s budget proposals approved in February 2018, there 
were various savings identified for the Health and Social Care budgets.  In 
general these budgets ultimately come under the Integrated Health and 
Social Care joint budgets.  Discussions are ongoing with the Learning 
Disability and Adult Services Social Work teams about those items which 
potentially are linked to further commissioning savings that will affect SB 
Cares. 

4.8 SB Cares is still clarifying the implications both in terms of service provision 
and the net financial consequence to us.  Once this has been clarified there 
is potential for an impact on the contract price, for 2018/19 on a partial 
year basis and the full impact for future years.  As this becomes available 
further information will be brought to the Major Contracts Governance 

Page 9



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

Group on the implications for SB Cares’ service provision and financial 
position.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial 

This report provides an update on the context and challenges to establishing 
a revised budget for SB Cares and the setting of the Target Contract 
Contribution/Rebate to the Council for 2018/19.  There are no further 
financial implications beyond the information contained in this report within 
Section 4 above.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations

The purpose of this report is to share the information on the challenges 
being worked through in order to agree the Target Contribution/Rebate to 
the Council for 2018/19.  This information will underpin the revision of SB 
Cares’ budget and is part of a process of normal financial management. 

5.3 Equalities

An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required as there is no decision to 
be made as part of this report.

5.4 Acting Sustainably 

There are no economic, social or environmental effects as a result of this 
report.

5.5 Carbon Management

There are no are no effects on carbon emissions as a result of this report.

5.6 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes required as a result of this report.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The SB Cares’ Board of Management considered the content of this report at 
its meeting on 28 June 2018.

Approved by

Name Philip Barr Signature …………………..
Title Managing Director, SB Cares

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Lynn Mirley Finance and Commercial Director, SB Cares

Page 10



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  You can also request information 
on other language translations as well as the provision additional copies.

Contact us at Corporate & Commercial Services Team, SB Cares, Bristol Building, 
Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE TD6 0SA

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Registered number SO305176

UNAUDITED

Members’ Annual Report and 
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 2

Contents 

Page

Members’ Annual Report 3

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities for Members Report and 
Financial Statements

13

Financial Statements

Profit and Loss Account 14

Balance Sheet 15

Statement Of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members 16

Accounting Policies 17

Notes to the Accounts 20

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members 24

Reference and Administrative Information 25

Page 14



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 3

Members’ Annual Report 

The Members present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2018.

Principal Activity 

The principal activity of Scottish Borders Supports LLP is the provision of Adult Social Care 
services. 

The partnership employs 11 staff (11 full time equivalents) in 11 positions with a number of 
staff having more than one role. 

Designated Members 

The Members who held office during the year and to the date of these financial statements 
were as follows:

Scottish Borders Council 

SBC Nominees Limited.  

The Members who held office at the date of approval of this Members’ report confirm that, so 
far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s 
Auditor is unaware; and each Member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken 
as a Member to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the Partnership’s Auditor is aware of that information. 

Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the Auditor will be deemed to be 
reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

SB Cares Trading Name 

Scottish Borders Supports LLP and Scottish Borders Cares LLP are both Limited Liability 
Partnerships working with Scottish Borders Council to provide Adult Social Care Services 
and collectively trade under the name of SB Cares.  

Scottish Borders Supports LLP receives adult care services to Scottish Borders Cares LLP.

Page 15



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 4

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Governance 

The two Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) that trade as SB Cares are managed by a 
single Board of Management which is subject to the provision of the individual Members 
Agreement for each of the LLPs.  Neither Scottish Borders Supports LLP nor the Board of 
Management shall make decisions in respect of the reserved matters set out in this 
agreement.

The Board of Management is employed by Scottish Borders Supports LLP and consists of:

a) The Managing Director
b) The Finance and Commercial Director
c) The Operations Director
d) The Chair

In addition up to five additional persons can be assumed to the Board of Management, 
where the persons have skills, knowledge or experience deemed to be useful to the Board of 
Management in fulfilling its obligations and functions to the SB Cares and its Members. 
There are currently two additional persons on the Board of Management.

The meetings of the Board of Management are held on a monthly basis. 

SB Cares’ Officers meet with Scottish Borders Council quarterly at the Council’s Major 
Contracts’ Governance Group Committee which replaced its Limited Liability Partnership - 
Strategic Governance Group during 2017.  This Group enables the Council to subject SB 
Cares to appropriate review and scrutiny.  The public minutes and papers from this 
Committee can be found on the Scottish Borders Council website (www.scotborders.gov.uk).

In addition the Chief Executive of Scottish Borders Council (the Council) may at any time 
invite the SB Cares’ Officers to attend a meeting of the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team to discuss such matters related to the Members Agreement and the Services of the 
Business.

Transactions with Members 

No remuneration of Members occurred during the year.  The Members’ share in the profit or 
loss for the year is accounted for as an allocation of profits with unallocated profits and 
losses included within ‘other reserves’.  

Scottish Borders Supports LLP transacts with one of its members, Scottish Borders Council 
to provide adult social care services.  These transactions are covered by a Service Provision 
Agreements between the two organisations which commenced on 1 April 2015.

Page 16



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 5

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 Financial Review – Scottish Borders Supports LLP

These financial statements represent the results of the year of trading from 1 April 2017 until 
31 March 2018.  In the year ended 31 March 2018, Scottish Borders Supports LLP 
generated a small profit of £44k.

Year Ending 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (310) 44

Remove Accounting Standard Adjustments:
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual 4 1

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management Accounts Basis (306) 45

Overall the LLP performed as expected for the year of trading and was able to provide 
Scottish Borders Council an efficiency contribution rebate of £465k on the contract for 
services for the year ending 31 March 2018.

The Balance Sheet of the LLP has strengthened to a position of £24k of net assets as at 

31 March 2018, compared with a net liabilities position of £20k at the end of the previous 
financial year.

Scottish Borders Supports LLP’s financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. 

Page 17



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 6

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Business Review – SB Cares

As stated previously Scottish Borders Supports LLP is one of the two entities which combine 
to trade as SB Cares.  As the Board of Management sets the strategic objectives and 
oversees the performance and management of the two LLPs as a combined whole, the 
Business Review is being presented as a joint review of both Scottish Borders Cares LLP 
and Scottish Borders Supports LLP.

Strategic Context

SB Cares’ Vision is to:

SB Cares will focus on our three Strategic Aims in order to support the delivery of this 
Vision and these are:

To have a team of staff who deliver seamless, high quality care and support
to every clientQuality

To deploy our staff, resources and finances as effficiently and effectively as
possible, ensuring best valueEfficiency

To expand and grow the services we provide for the people of the Scottish
Borders and generate income to invest in future care servicesBusiness

These Strategic Aims underpin all of our priorities and actions, with Quality being the key 
aim of all that we do.  The Board of Management has agreed six priorities on which the 
Board and the Senior Management Team have developed action plans for delivering, 
developing and improving the services to our clients.  Our Priorities are as follows:

become the provider of choice for 
adult social care services in the Scottish Borders

Page 18



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 7

SB
Cares'

Strategic

Invest in our Staff to
Improve Client

Outcomes

Build on Key
Partnerships

Make our Services as
Efficient and Effective

as possible

Modernise our
Services through

Technology

Grow and Develop our
Business

Develop Excellent
Governance

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 – Summary of Our Activities
2017/18 has been a very busy and successful year for SB Cares and this report, at the end 
of our third year of trading, provides an overview of the activities throughout the year. 

Key Facts and Figures for 2017/18

SB Cares supported over 12,000 clients, families and carers through the provision of its 
adult social cares services throughout the Scottish Borders by:

 Delivering over 15,000 visits per week to enable more than 900 people to remain in 
their own homes.

 Delivering 11,840 pieces of additional ability equipment to support 2,336 new clients 
to live more independently, with a total of 9,818 clients using equipment on loan 
from the Community Equipment Service at the end of the financial year.

 Supporting 1,545 clients and another 291 individual homes in supported housing 
schemes to maintain independence with 24 hour monitored personal alarms 

 Providing 24 hour support through 143 beds in a care home environment for those 
people with higher level needs

 Supporting clients through our day services enabling people to remain at home and 
providing respite to families and carers

Delivering Our Strategic Priorities during 2017/18

 Invest in our Staff to Improve Client Outcomes
SB Cares has:

Page 19



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 8

a. Improved its Support Worker induction programme in order to continue to improve 
quality of care to clients;

b. updated its approach to recruitment through the introduction of rolling annual 
recruitment for Support Workers;

c. implemented revised organisational structures for the management of both Care and 
Financial & Commercial Services, with additional focus on quality;

d. reviewed Homecare operations and is in the process of implementing new positions 
to support improving quality of care, and effectiveness of scheduling visits; and

e. agreed a revised Communication, Engagement and Marketing Strategy.

Page 20



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 9

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

 Build on Key Partnerships
SB Cares has:

a. established a new Discharge to Assess Care Home at Craw Wood, Tweedbank to 
provide a short term supported transition from acute medical care in hospital prior to 
returning home, and this has been done under the Integrated Joint Board for Health 
and Social Care in partnership with NHS Borders; and

b. worked with Borders College to develop new social care courses, which SB Cares 
staff are able to participate in as part of their development.

 Make our Services as Efficient and Effective as possible
SB Cares has:

a. implemented a staffing model across the Scottish Borders for local home care 
teams which provides a consistent, more responsive and flexible 7 day service;

b. implemented the first phase of a dedicated 4x4 vehicle fleet for the home care 
teams which supports improved continuity of care provision to clients during 
adverse winter weather, and opens up employment opportunities to individuals with 
limited personal vehicle access;

c. established the first single care registration for a co-located older people and 
learning disabilities day service in Peebles which has resulted in improved 
outcomes and experiences for clients in both services; and

d. Changed the approach to the provision of meals within our Care Homes reducing 
costs without impacting on quality or flexibility of service.

 Modernise our Services through Technology
SB Cares has:
a. transitioned the alarm monitoring and out of hours’ telephony services of Border Care 

to East Lothian Council’s centre of excellence in order to secure the benefits new 
technology for call handling, which will enable us to provide a cost effective services 
and deliver increased service’s resilience and improved overall caller experience; and

b. transferred its Community Equipment Service into a purpose built facility with modern 
cleaning facilities and delivery vehicles with bespoke fittings to separate issued and 
returned equipment, all of which contribute to improvements in infection control.

 Grow and Develop our Business
SB Cares has:
a. sustained better than expected client retention following the significant price increase 

for Bordercare Alarm services agreed by the Council as part of its charging reviews, 
resulting in approximately £150k increased turnover.

 Develop Excellent Governance
SB Cares has:

a. continued to improve the quality care with 85% of their registered care services 
receiving Care Inspectorate grades of Good or above.

b. engaged effectively with the Council’s Major Contracts Governance Group, Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee and Corporate Management Team and delivered significant 
elements of the Health and Social Care Partnership’s strategic agenda.

Page 21



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 10

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Quality of Our Care

Our registered care services continue to be regulated by the Care Inspectorate and are 
inspected regularly through their programme.  During 2017/18, SB Cares continued to see 
an overall improvement in the quality of the scores achieved in many of our registered 
services and the chart below shows the cumulative scores demonstrates these 
improvements.

261

270

286

2014 2015 * 2016 2017
255

260

265

270

275

280

285

290

SB Cares' Care Inspection Score

Cu
m

m
ul

at
ei

ve
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Sc
or

es

* 2015 SB Cares first registered  services  no  inspections  took place

In addition, the proportion of our registered services achieving very good and above has 
risen from 15% in 2015/16 to 39% in 2017/18.

Page 22



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 11

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Risk Management 
Corporate Risk Management

SB Cares recognises the importance of the management of corporate risk and applies 
appropriate corporate governance to ensure it is successfully monitored and managed. 

SB Cares has adopted the Council’s corporate risk policy to embed risk management into its 
business practices.  SB Cares has continued to monitor, manage and mitigate risk through 
the proactive management of its risk register and associated actions.

The register is reviewed by reflect risks and mitigations associated with the delivery of its 
current Business Plan.  The risk register will be regularly reviewed by its Senior 
Management Team and Board of Management as part of its performance monitoring 
processes.

The Council’s Audit & Risk function, as part of the Service Level Agreement, carries out 
regular audits of business functions and areas of risk whose findings are reported to the 
Board of Management.  The Council’s Head of Audit and Risk and Risk Manager attend the 
Board of Management meetings on a quarterly basis.

Public Sector Financial Pressures

The overall pressure on public finances continues to be the dominant risk to SB Cares. 
Budget pressures and service reduction within the Council has an effect on SB Cares as it 
provides key services to this main client. SB Cares continues to monitor the change in 
business operation and address the mitigation of risk proactively.  This is accomplished 
through working closely with its key partners and our clients as well as reviewing our 
business model to secure continuous improvement.

Financial Management

Cash flow management procedures are in place to ensure that resources are managed 
effectively. 

The Board of Management receive a monthly update on the financial position for SB Cares 
and this includes narrative commentary on movements and updating of the forecast out-turn 
for the organisation.

Page 23



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 12

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Combined Financial Position –SB Cares – 2017/18
SB Cares as a trading entity reports to the Board of Management on a monthly basis, 
presenting the financial position on a management accounting basis (i.e. excluding the 
impact of the accounting for retirement benefits).  This allows informed monitoring and 
evaluation of the trading financial position.  The table below shows the combined position for 
the 2 LLPs, showing the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reported position per the 
2017/18 Annual Accounts and the underlying trading position for 2017/18.

Year Ending 31 March 2018
SB 

Supports 
LLP

SB Cares 
LLP

Total 
SB Cares

£000 £000 £000
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 44 (735) (691)
International Accounting Standard Adjustments:  

IAS 119 Retirement Benefits Adjustments 0 723 723
SBC Service Efficiency Contract Rebate 465 465
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual (1) 6 5

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management 
Accounts Basis 508 (6) 502

The budget was fully reviewed and revised in June/July 2017 and the SB Cares Board of 
Management have received regular monitoring reports on progress during the year.  An 
overall assessment of the combined results of the Scottish Borders Supports and Scottish 
Borders Cares LLPs has resulted in the generation of an efficiency contribution on the 
annual contract fee for services of £465k on top of previously achieved reductions in the 
contract.

The table below identifies what SB Cares has been able to contribute through contractual 
rebates as part of its trading arrangements with the Council:

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000 £000

Recurring Savings returned to SBC:
2015/16
2017/18

480 480 480
465

Total Recurring Savings 480 480 945

One-Off Savings returned to SBC - 2016/17 600

Annual Savings 480 1,080 945

% of Contractual Management Fee 3% 7% 6%

Cumulative Savings 480 1,560 2,505

Page 24



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 13

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

This year’s contribution has been achieved by a variety of efficiency projects undertaken 
during the year including:

 roll out of improved Home Care scheduling and rotas; 
 fleet optimisation activity especially in Home Care and the Community Equipment 

Service;
 implementing a new meal service within Care Homes; and
 reviewing the shopping service.

In conclusion the Members Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018, demonstrate that SB Cares continues to improve and drive forward with its service 
and financial priorities.

The Members’ Annual Report was signed on behalf of Members by

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr

For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

[date]

Page 25



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 14

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities in respect of the 
Members’ Report and the Financial Statements 

The Members are responsible for preparing the Members' Report and the LLP financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) 
Regulations 2008 require the Members to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year.  Under that law the Members have elected to prepare the LLP financial statements in 
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. 

Under Regulation 8 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 the Members must not approve the financial 
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the LLP and of the profit or loss of the LLP for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Members are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to 

any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the LLP will continue in business. 

Under Regulation 6 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008, the Members are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the LLP's transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP and enable 
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with those regulations.  They have 
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the LLP and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and 
financial information included on the SB Cares’ website.  Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions.

Page 26



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 15

Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

2017 2018

£000 £000

Notes

17,538 Turnover 18,272 1
(17,075) Cost of Sales (17.221) 3

463 Gross Profit / (Loss) 1,051

(779) Administrative Expenses (1,012) 4

(316) Profit / (Loss) on Ordinary Activities after Taxation 39

6 Interest Receivable and Similar Income 5 5

(310) Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available for 
Discretionary Division Among Members 44

0 Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 0

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 44

 Scottish Borders Supports LLP’s turnover and expenses all relate to continuing operations.

Page 27



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 16

Balance Sheet 
at 31 March 2018

2017 2018

£000 £000

678 Fixed Assets 849 7

Current Assets
74 Stock 87 8

221 Debtors 669 9
2,946 Cash at Bank and in Hand 2,038
3,241 2,794

Creditors
(3,939) Amounts failing due within 1 year (825) 10

(698) Net Current Assets / (Liabilities) (825)

(20) Net Assets / (Liabilities) attributable to Members 24

Represented by:

Members’ Other Interests:
0 Members Capital Account 0

20 Profit and Loss Reserve (24)

20 (24)

20 Total Members’ Interests (24)

Page 28



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 17

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members

For the year ended 31 March 

Members 
Capital 

Account

Profit & 
Loss 

Reserve

Total 
Members 
Interests

£000 £000 £000
 
Balance at 1 April 2016 0 290 290
 
Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available 
for Discretionary Division Among Members

(310) (310)

 
Balance at 31 March 2017 0 (20) (20)

Balance at 1 April 2017 0 (20) (20)
 
Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available 
for Discretionary Division Among Members

44 44

 
Balance at 31 March 2018 0 24 24

The Accounting Policies on pages 17 to 19 and the Notes to the Accounts on pages 
20 to 23 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Members and authorised for issue 
on TBC 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr
For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

[DATE tbc]
Company registered number: SO305176

Page 29



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 18

Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which 
are considered material in relation to the Limited Liability Partnership’s financial statements. 

(i) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards under the historical cost accounting rules.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS101.  In preparing 
these financial statements, the Company applied the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
EU but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 
2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS101 disclosure exemptions have 
been taken.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under 
FRS101 in respect of the following disclosures:

 a cash flow statement and related notes;
 comparative period reconciliations of share capital;
 the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and
 disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel.

As the LLP is a wholly owned subsidiary of Scottish Borders Council, the LLP has taken 
advantage of the exemption contained in International Accounting Standard 24 'related 
parties' (“IAS24”) and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with entities 
which form part of the group as related parties. 

(ii) Going concern 

The LLP’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, 
performance and position, are set out in the Members’ report on page 3.  The Members have 
a reasonable expectation that despite there being a significant negative net worth at the end 
of the year the LLP has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future with a service provision agreement in place with Scottish Borders Council 
until March 2020.  Thus Members continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the annual financial statements. 

(iii) Members' Remuneration and Allocation of Profits 

Members are not remunerated by the LLP.  A Member's share in the profit or loss for the 
accounting period is accounted for as an allocation of profits.  Unallocated profits and losses 
are included within 'other reserves'. 

(iv) Members' Capital 

Page 30



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 19

The capital requirements of the LLP are determined from time to time by the Members.  No 
interest is paid on capital. 

Page 31



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 20

Accounting Policies (continued) 

(v) Value Added Tax 

The LLP is registered for VAT purposes.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant 
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where 
output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 

(vi) Taxation 

Taxation on all partnership profits is solely the liability of individual members.  Consequently 
neither taxation nor related deferred taxation arising in the LLP are accounted for in these 
financial statements. 

(vii) Fixed Assets 

Assets purchased in excess of the de minimis level of £1,000 or grouped £5,000 are 
included in the balance sheet as fixed assets.  Depreciation is applied in the period from      
1 April in the financial year following their acquisition. 

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis and the useful life of an asset is deemed to 
be: 

I.T. Systems 3 years 

Plant and Equipment 5 years 

Rehabilitation Equipment 5-10 years

Assets disposed of, or taken out of use will be fully written off in period of disposal or 
removal from use. 

(viii) Income Recognition 

Income is recognised in the accounting period to which it relates.  Income from grants, 
contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent of the completion of the 
contract or service concerned.  Income received in advance is included in the balance sheet 
within creditors: amounts falling due within one year. 

(ix) Trade and Other Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment losses.

(x) Trade and Other Creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Page 32



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 21

Accounting Policies (continued) 

(xi) Interest-Bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised 
cost using the effective interest model, less any impairment losses.

(xii) Financial Assets (including Trade and Other Debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit and loss is assessed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.  A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be measured reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.  When a subsequent 
event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit and loss.

(xiii) Stock 

Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in line with the requirements of 
International Accounting Standard 2 “Inventories” (“IAS2”) 

Page 33



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 22

Notes to Annual Accounts
(forming part of the financial statements) 

1    Turnover 

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and services supplied under the principal 
activities of the LLP. 

2    Staff Numbers and Costs 

The average Full Time Equivalent (FTE) number of persons employed by the LLP during the 
year, analysed by category, was as follows: 

Number of employees 
(FTE)

2016/17 2017/18

Administration 11

Staff costs for the above persons were: £000 £000

Wages and salaries 419 485

Social security costs 43 45
Pension costs 56 71
Total Staff Costs 518 601

3   Cost of Sales 

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Cost of Services from Scottish Borders Cares LLP 14,890 14,868

Property and Energy Costs 405 426

Transport and Travel Costs 492 476

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment Costs 517 508

Other Cost of Sales 771 942

Total Cost of Sales 17,075 17,221

Page 34



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 23

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)

4   Administration Expenses 

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Staff Costs (see Note 2) 518 601

Depreciation (See Note 28 99

Auditors’ Remuneration * 22 26

Other Administration Expenses 211 286

779 1,012

*This represents the cost of the audit of these financial statements

5  Other Interest Receivable and Similar Items

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Other Interest Receivable 6 5

6 5

6   Particulars of Members 

The number of Members of the Limited Liability Partnership for the year was two.  No 
remuneration was paid to either member.

Page 35



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 24

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
7    Fixed Assets – to check

IT Systems & 
Equipment

Plant & 
Equipment

Rehabil-
itation 

equipment
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
  

Book Value as at 31 Mar 2017 20 65 628 713
Additions During Year 0 48 222 270
Book Value as at 31 Mar 2018 20 113 850 983

  
Accumulated Depreciation to 31 Mar 2017 (5) (2) (28) (35)
Depreciation Charge for year (7) (13) (79) (99)
Accumulated Depreciation to 31 Mar 2018 (12) (15) (107) (134)

  
Net Book Value as at 31 Mar 2017 15 62 601 678
Change in Net Book Value during Year (7) 35 142 170
Net Book Value as at 31 Mar 2018 8 97 743 848

8    Stock

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Raw Materials and Consumables 74 87

Total Stock 74 87

9    Debtors 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Trade debtors 21 59

Amounts owed by Group Undertakings 55 335
Prepayments and Accrued Income 256 275
Total Debtors 221 669

 

Page 36



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 25

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
10    Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Trade Creditors 18 47

Amounts owed to Group Undertakings 366 372

Value Added Tax 507 523

Accruals and Deferred Income 2,341 2,618
Other Creditors 706 59
Total  Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year 3,939 3,619

11   Financial Instruments

The financial instruments held are trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade 
creditors and other creditors.  All are held at amortised cost which, given their short term 
nature is estimated to equate to fair value.

The partnership’s exposure to credit risk is considered to be minimal given its principal trade 
debtor is Scottish Borders Council.  Similarly given the nature of its business it is considered 
to have limited liquidity risk.

12   Post Balance Sheet Events 

There were no post balance sheet events requiring adjustment or disclosure within the 
financial statements. 

13   Ultimate Parent Organisation 

The LLP's ultimate parent undertaking is Scottish Borders Council, one of its designated 
members, as this is the largest group into which the results of the LLP are consolidated.  The 
consolidated group financial statements of Scottish Borders Council may be obtained from 
its registered office at Scottish Borders Council offices, Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA.

Page 37



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 26

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of 
Scottish Borders Supports LLP  

TO BE INSERTED AFTER AUDIT

Page 38



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 27

Reference and Administration Information

Company Name Scottish Borders Supports LLP

Company Registration Number SO305176

Registered Office Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
Scottish Borders
TD6 0SA

Statutory Auditor KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2EG

Bankers Bank of Scotland
Level 6
110 St Vincent Street
GLASGOW
G2 5ER

Contact Information

For further information on Scottish Borders Supports LLP, please contact

Lynn Mirley
Finance and Commercial Director
SB Cares
Bristol Building
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA 

Telephone: 01835 825016
Email: info@sbcares.co.uk
Website: sbcares.co.uk

Page 39

mailto:info@sbcares.co.uk
http://www.sbcares.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Registered number SO305176

UNAUDITED

Members’ Annual Report and 
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Page 41



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 2

Contents 

Page

Members’ Annual Report 3

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities for Members Report and 
Financial Statements

13

Financial Statements

Profit and Loss Account 14

Balance Sheet 15

Statement Of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members 16

Accounting Policies 17

Notes to the Accounts 20

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members 24

Reference and Administrative Information 25

Page 42



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 3

Members’ Annual Report 

The Members present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2018.

Principal Activity 

The principal activity of Scottish Borders Supports LLP is the provision of Adult Social Care 
services. 

The partnership employs 11 staff (11 full time equivalents) in 11 positions with a number of 
staff having more than one role. 

Designated Members 

The Members who held office during the year and to the date of these financial statements 
were as follows:

Scottish Borders Council 

SBC Nominees Limited.  

The Members who held office at the date of approval of this Members’ report confirm that, so 
far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s 
Auditor is unaware; and each Member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken 
as a Member to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the Partnership’s Auditor is aware of that information. 

Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the Auditor will be deemed to be 
reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

SB Cares Trading Name 

Scottish Borders Supports LLP and Scottish Borders Cares LLP are both Limited Liability 
Partnerships working with Scottish Borders Council to provide Adult Social Care Services 
and collectively trade under the name of SB Cares.  

Scottish Borders Supports LLP receives adult care services to Scottish Borders Cares LLP.

Page 43



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 4

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Governance 

The two Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) that trade as SB Cares are managed by a 
single Board of Management which is subject to the provision of the individual Members 
Agreement for each of the LLPs.  Neither Scottish Borders Supports LLP nor the Board of 
Management shall make decisions in respect of the reserved matters set out in this 
agreement.

The Board of Management is employed by Scottish Borders Supports LLP and consists of:

a) The Managing Director
b) The Finance and Commercial Director
c) The Operations Director
d) The Chair

In addition up to five additional persons can be assumed to the Board of Management, 
where the persons have skills, knowledge or experience deemed to be useful to the Board of 
Management in fulfilling its obligations and functions to the SB Cares and its Members. 
There are currently two additional persons on the Board of Management.

The meetings of the Board of Management are held on a monthly basis. 

SB Cares’ Officers meet with Scottish Borders Council quarterly at the Council’s Major 
Contracts’ Governance Group Committee which replaced its Limited Liability Partnership - 
Strategic Governance Group during 2017.  This Group enables the Council to subject SB 
Cares to appropriate review and scrutiny.  The public minutes and papers from this 
Committee can be found on the Scottish Borders Council website (www.scotborders.gov.uk).

In addition the Chief Executive of Scottish Borders Council (the Council) may at any time 
invite the SB Cares’ Officers to attend a meeting of the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team to discuss such matters related to the Members Agreement and the Services of the 
Business.

Transactions with Members 

No remuneration of Members occurred during the year.  The Members’ share in the profit or 
loss for the year is accounted for as an allocation of profits with unallocated profits and 
losses included within ‘other reserves’.  

Scottish Borders Supports LLP transacts with one of its members, Scottish Borders Council 
to provide adult social care services.  These transactions are covered by a Service Provision 
Agreements between the two organisations which commenced on 1 April 2015.

Page 44



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 5

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 Financial Review – Scottish Borders Supports LLP

These financial statements represent the results of the year of trading from 1 April 2017 until 
31 March 2018.  In the year ended 31 March 2018, Scottish Borders Supports LLP 
generated a small profit of £44k.

Year Ending 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (310) 44

Remove Accounting Standard Adjustments:
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual 4 1

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management Accounts Basis (306) 45

Overall the LLP performed as expected for the year of trading and was able to provide 
Scottish Borders Council an efficiency contribution rebate of £465k on the contract for 
services for the year ending 31 March 2018.

The Balance Sheet of the LLP has strengthened to a position of £24k of net assets as at 

31 March 2018, compared with a net liabilities position of £20k at the end of the previous 
financial year.

Scottish Borders Supports LLP’s financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. 

Page 45



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 6

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Business Review – SB Cares

As stated previously Scottish Borders Supports LLP is one of the two entities which combine 
to trade as SB Cares.  As the Board of Management sets the strategic objectives and 
oversees the performance and management of the two LLPs as a combined whole, the 
Business Review is being presented as a joint review of both Scottish Borders Cares LLP 
and Scottish Borders Supports LLP.

Strategic Context

SB Cares’ Vision is to:

SB Cares will focus on our three Strategic Aims in order to support the delivery of this 
Vision and these are:

To have a team of staff who deliver seamless, high quality care and support
to every clientQuality

To deploy our staff, resources and finances as effficiently and effectively as
possible, ensuring best valueEfficiency

To expand and grow the services we provide for the people of the Scottish
Borders and generate income to invest in future care servicesBusiness

These Strategic Aims underpin all of our priorities and actions, with Quality being the key 
aim of all that we do.  The Board of Management has agreed six priorities on which the 
Board and the Senior Management Team have developed action plans for delivering, 
developing and improving the services to our clients.  Our Priorities are as follows:

become the provider of choice for 
adult social care services in the Scottish Borders

Page 46



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 7

SB
Cares'

Strategic

Invest in our Staff to
Improve Client

Outcomes

Build on Key
Partnerships

Make our Services as
Efficient and Effective

as possible

Modernise our
Services through

Technology

Grow and Develop our
Business

Develop Excellent
Governance

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 – Summary of Our Activities
2017/18 has been a very busy and successful year for SB Cares and this report, at the end 
of our third year of trading, provides an overview of the activities throughout the year. 

Key Facts and Figures for 2017/18

SB Cares supported over 12,000 clients, families and carers through the provision of its 
adult social cares services throughout the Scottish Borders by:

 Delivering over 15,000 visits per week to enable more than 900 people to remain in 
their own homes.

 Delivering 11,840 pieces of additional ability equipment to support 2,336 new clients 
to live more independently, with a total of 9,818 clients using equipment on loan 
from the Community Equipment Service at the end of the financial year.

 Supporting 1,545 clients and another 291 individual homes in supported housing 
schemes to maintain independence with 24 hour monitored personal alarms 

 Providing 24 hour support through 143 beds in a care home environment for those 
people with higher level needs

 Supporting clients through our day services enabling people to remain at home and 
providing respite to families and carers

Delivering Our Strategic Priorities during 2017/18

 Invest in our Staff to Improve Client Outcomes
SB Cares has:

Page 47



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 8

a. Improved its Support Worker induction programme in order to continue to improve 
quality of care to clients;

b. updated its approach to recruitment through the introduction of rolling annual 
recruitment for Support Workers;

c. implemented revised organisational structures for the management of both Care and 
Financial & Commercial Services, with additional focus on quality;

d. reviewed Homecare operations and is in the process of implementing new positions 
to support improving quality of care, and effectiveness of scheduling visits; and

e. agreed a revised Communication, Engagement and Marketing Strategy.

Page 48



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 9

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

 Build on Key Partnerships
SB Cares has:

a. established a new Discharge to Assess Care Home at Craw Wood, Tweedbank to 
provide a short term supported transition from acute medical care in hospital prior to 
returning home, and this has been done under the Integrated Joint Board for Health 
and Social Care in partnership with NHS Borders; and

b. worked with Borders College to develop new social care courses, which SB Cares 
staff are able to participate in as part of their development.

 Make our Services as Efficient and Effective as possible
SB Cares has:

a. implemented a staffing model across the Scottish Borders for local home care 
teams which provides a consistent, more responsive and flexible 7 day service;

b. implemented the first phase of a dedicated 4x4 vehicle fleet for the home care 
teams which supports improved continuity of care provision to clients during 
adverse winter weather, and opens up employment opportunities to individuals with 
limited personal vehicle access;

c. established the first single care registration for a co-located older people and 
learning disabilities day service in Peebles which has resulted in improved 
outcomes and experiences for clients in both services; and

d. Changed the approach to the provision of meals within our Care Homes reducing 
costs without impacting on quality or flexibility of service.

 Modernise our Services through Technology
SB Cares has:
a. transitioned the alarm monitoring and out of hours’ telephony services of Border Care 

to East Lothian Council’s centre of excellence in order to secure the benefits new 
technology for call handling, which will enable us to provide a cost effective services 
and deliver increased service’s resilience and improved overall caller experience; and

b. transferred its Community Equipment Service into a purpose built facility with modern 
cleaning facilities and delivery vehicles with bespoke fittings to separate issued and 
returned equipment, all of which contribute to improvements in infection control.

 Grow and Develop our Business
SB Cares has:
a. sustained better than expected client retention following the significant price increase 

for Bordercare Alarm services agreed by the Council as part of its charging reviews, 
resulting in approximately £150k increased turnover.

 Develop Excellent Governance
SB Cares has:

a. continued to improve the quality care with 85% of their registered care services 
receiving Care Inspectorate grades of Good or above.

b. engaged effectively with the Council’s Major Contracts Governance Group, Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee and Corporate Management Team and delivered significant 
elements of the Health and Social Care Partnership’s strategic agenda.

Page 49



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 10

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Quality of Our Care

Our registered care services continue to be regulated by the Care Inspectorate and are 
inspected regularly through their programme.  During 2017/18, SB Cares continued to see 
an overall improvement in the quality of the scores achieved in many of our registered 
services and the chart below shows the cumulative scores demonstrates these 
improvements.

261

270

286

2014 2015 * 2016 2017
255

260

265

270

275

280

285

290

SB Cares' Care Inspection Score

Cu
m

m
ul

at
ei

ve
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Sc
or

es

* 2015 SB Cares first registered  services  no  inspections  took place

In addition, the proportion of our registered services achieving very good and above has 
risen from 15% in 2015/16 to 39% in 2017/18.

Page 50



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 11

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Risk Management 
Corporate Risk Management

SB Cares recognises the importance of the management of corporate risk and applies 
appropriate corporate governance to ensure it is successfully monitored and managed. 

SB Cares has adopted the Council’s corporate risk policy to embed risk management into its 
business practices.  SB Cares has continued to monitor, manage and mitigate risk through 
the proactive management of its risk register and associated actions.

The register is reviewed by reflect risks and mitigations associated with the delivery of its 
current Business Plan.  The risk register will be regularly reviewed by its Senior 
Management Team and Board of Management as part of its performance monitoring 
processes.

The Council’s Audit & Risk function, as part of the Service Level Agreement, carries out 
regular audits of business functions and areas of risk whose findings are reported to the 
Board of Management.  The Council’s Head of Audit and Risk and Risk Manager attend the 
Board of Management meetings on a quarterly basis.

Public Sector Financial Pressures

The overall pressure on public finances continues to be the dominant risk to SB Cares. 
Budget pressures and service reduction within the Council has an effect on SB Cares as it 
provides key services to this main client. SB Cares continues to monitor the change in 
business operation and address the mitigation of risk proactively.  This is accomplished 
through working closely with its key partners and our clients as well as reviewing our 
business model to secure continuous improvement.

Financial Management

Cash flow management procedures are in place to ensure that resources are managed 
effectively. 

The Board of Management receive a monthly update on the financial position for SB Cares 
and this includes narrative commentary on movements and updating of the forecast out-turn 
for the organisation.

Page 51



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 12

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Combined Financial Position –SB Cares – 2017/18
SB Cares as a trading entity reports to the Board of Management on a monthly basis, 
presenting the financial position on a management accounting basis (i.e. excluding the 
impact of the accounting for retirement benefits).  This allows informed monitoring and 
evaluation of the trading financial position.  The table below shows the combined position for 
the 2 LLPs, showing the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reported position per the 
2017/18 Annual Accounts and the underlying trading position for 2017/18.

Year Ending 31 March 2018
SB 

Supports 
LLP

SB Cares 
LLP

Total 
SB Cares

£000 £000 £000
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 44 (735) (691)
International Accounting Standard Adjustments:  

IAS 119 Retirement Benefits Adjustments 0 723 723
SBC Service Efficiency Contract Rebate 465 465
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual (1) 6 5

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management 
Accounts Basis 508 (6) 502

The budget was fully reviewed and revised in June/July 2017 and the SB Cares Board of 
Management have received regular monitoring reports on progress during the year.  An 
overall assessment of the combined results of the Scottish Borders Supports and Scottish 
Borders Cares LLPs has resulted in the generation of an efficiency contribution on the 
annual contract fee for services of £465k on top of previously achieved reductions in the 
contract.

The table below identifies what SB Cares has been able to contribute through contractual 
rebates as part of its trading arrangements with the Council:

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000 £000

Recurring Savings returned to SBC:
2015/16
2017/18

480 480 480
465

Total Recurring Savings 480 480 945

One-Off Savings returned to SBC - 2016/17 600

Annual Savings 480 1,080 945

% of Contractual Management Fee 3% 7% 6%

Cumulative Savings 480 1,560 2,505

Page 52



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 13

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

This year’s contribution has been achieved by a variety of efficiency projects undertaken 
during the year including:

 roll out of improved Home Care scheduling and rotas; 
 fleet optimisation activity especially in Home Care and the Community Equipment 

Service;
 implementing a new meal service within Care Homes; and
 reviewing the shopping service.

In conclusion the Members Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018, demonstrate that SB Cares continues to improve and drive forward with its service 
and financial priorities.

The Members’ Annual Report was signed on behalf of Members by

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr

For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

[date]

Page 53



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 14

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities in respect of the 
Members’ Report and the Financial Statements 

The Members are responsible for preparing the Members' Report and the LLP financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) 
Regulations 2008 require the Members to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year.  Under that law the Members have elected to prepare the LLP financial statements in 
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. 

Under Regulation 8 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 the Members must not approve the financial 
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the LLP and of the profit or loss of the LLP for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Members are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to 

any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the LLP will continue in business. 

Under Regulation 6 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008, the Members are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the LLP's transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP and enable 
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with those regulations.  They have 
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the LLP and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and 
financial information included on the SB Cares’ website.  Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions.

Page 54



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 15

Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

2017 2018

£000 £000

Notes

17,538 Turnover 18,272 1
(17,075) Cost of Sales (17.221) 3

463 Gross Profit / (Loss) 1,051

(779) Administrative Expenses (1,012) 4

(316) Profit / (Loss) on Ordinary Activities after Taxation 39

6 Interest Receivable and Similar Income 5 5

(310) Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available for 
Discretionary Division Among Members 44

0 Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 0

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 44

 Scottish Borders Supports LLP’s turnover and expenses all relate to continuing operations.

Page 55



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 16

Balance Sheet 
at 31 March 2018

2017 2018

£000 £000

678 Fixed Assets 849 7

Current Assets
74 Stock 87 8

221 Debtors 669 9
2,946 Cash at Bank and in Hand 2,038
3,241 2,794

Creditors
(3,939) Amounts failing due within 1 year (825) 10

(698) Net Current Assets / (Liabilities) (825)

(20) Net Assets / (Liabilities) attributable to Members 24

Represented by:

Members’ Other Interests:
0 Members Capital Account 0

20 Profit and Loss Reserve (24)

20 (24)

20 Total Members’ Interests (24)

Page 56



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 17

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members

For the year ended 31 March 

Members 
Capital 

Account

Profit & 
Loss 

Reserve

Total 
Members 
Interests

£000 £000 £000
 
Balance at 1 April 2016 0 290 290
 
Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available 
for Discretionary Division Among Members

(310) (310)

 
Balance at 31 March 2017 0 (20) (20)

Balance at 1 April 2017 0 (20) (20)
 
Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available 
for Discretionary Division Among Members

44 44

 
Balance at 31 March 2018 0 24 24

The Accounting Policies on pages 17 to 19 and the Notes to the Accounts on pages 
20 to 23 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Members and authorised for issue 
on TBC 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr
For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

[DATE tbc]
Company registered number: SO305176

Page 57



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 18

Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which 
are considered material in relation to the Limited Liability Partnership’s financial statements. 

(i) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards under the historical cost accounting rules.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS101.  In preparing 
these financial statements, the Company applied the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
EU but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 
2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS101 disclosure exemptions have 
been taken.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under 
FRS101 in respect of the following disclosures:

 a cash flow statement and related notes;
 comparative period reconciliations of share capital;
 the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and
 disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel.

As the LLP is a wholly owned subsidiary of Scottish Borders Council, the LLP has taken 
advantage of the exemption contained in International Accounting Standard 24 'related 
parties' (“IAS24”) and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with entities 
which form part of the group as related parties. 

(ii) Going concern 

The LLP’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, 
performance and position, are set out in the Members’ report on page 3.  The Members have 
a reasonable expectation that despite there being a significant negative net worth at the end 
of the year the LLP has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future with a service provision agreement in place with Scottish Borders Council 
until March 2020.  Thus Members continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the annual financial statements. 

(iii) Members' Remuneration and Allocation of Profits 

Members are not remunerated by the LLP.  A Member's share in the profit or loss for the 
accounting period is accounted for as an allocation of profits.  Unallocated profits and losses 
are included within 'other reserves'. 

(iv) Members' Capital 

Page 58



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 19

The capital requirements of the LLP are determined from time to time by the Members.  No 
interest is paid on capital. 

Page 59



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 20

Accounting Policies (continued) 

(v) Value Added Tax 

The LLP is registered for VAT purposes.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant 
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where 
output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 

(vi) Taxation 

Taxation on all partnership profits is solely the liability of individual members.  Consequently 
neither taxation nor related deferred taxation arising in the LLP are accounted for in these 
financial statements. 

(vii) Fixed Assets 

Assets purchased in excess of the de minimis level of £1,000 or grouped £5,000 are 
included in the balance sheet as fixed assets.  Depreciation is applied in the period from      
1 April in the financial year following their acquisition. 

Depreciation is charged on a straight line basis and the useful life of an asset is deemed to 
be: 

I.T. Systems 3 years 

Plant and Equipment 5 years 

Rehabilitation Equipment 5-10 years

Assets disposed of, or taken out of use will be fully written off in period of disposal or 
removal from use. 

(viii) Income Recognition 

Income is recognised in the accounting period to which it relates.  Income from grants, 
contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent of the completion of the 
contract or service concerned.  Income received in advance is included in the balance sheet 
within creditors: amounts falling due within one year. 

(ix) Trade and Other Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment losses.

(x) Trade and Other Creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Page 60



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 21

Accounting Policies (continued) 

(xi) Interest-Bearing Borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised 
cost using the effective interest model, less any impairment losses.

(xii) Financial Assets (including Trade and Other Debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit and loss is assessed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.  A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be measured reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.  When a subsequent 
event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit and loss.

(xiii) Stock 

Stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in line with the requirements of 
International Accounting Standard 2 “Inventories” (“IAS2”) 

Page 61



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 22

Notes to Annual Accounts
(forming part of the financial statements) 

1    Turnover 

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and services supplied under the principal 
activities of the LLP. 

2    Staff Numbers and Costs 

The average Full Time Equivalent (FTE) number of persons employed by the LLP during the 
year, analysed by category, was as follows: 

Number of employees 
(FTE)

2016/17 2017/18

Administration 11

Staff costs for the above persons were: £000 £000

Wages and salaries 419 485

Social security costs 43 45
Pension costs 56 71
Total Staff Costs 518 601

3   Cost of Sales 

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Cost of Services from Scottish Borders Cares LLP 14,890 14,868

Property and Energy Costs 405 426

Transport and Travel Costs 492 476

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment Costs 517 508

Other Cost of Sales 771 942

Total Cost of Sales 17,075 17,221

Page 62



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 23

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)

4   Administration Expenses 

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Staff Costs (see Note 2) 518 601

Depreciation (See Note 28 99

Auditors’ Remuneration * 22 26

Other Administration Expenses 211 286

779 1,012

*This represents the cost of the audit of these financial statements

5  Other Interest Receivable and Similar Items

Included in the Profit and (Loss) statement for the year are the following amounts:

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Other Interest Receivable 6 5

6 5

6   Particulars of Members 

The number of Members of the Limited Liability Partnership for the year was two.  No 
remuneration was paid to either member.

Page 63



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 24

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
7    Fixed Assets – to check

IT Systems & 
Equipment

Plant & 
Equipment

Rehabil-
itation 

equipment
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
  

Book Value as at 31 Mar 2017 20 65 628 713
Additions During Year 0 48 222 270
Book Value as at 31 Mar 2018 20 113 850 983

  
Accumulated Depreciation to 31 Mar 2017 (5) (2) (28) (35)
Depreciation Charge for year (7) (13) (79) (99)
Accumulated Depreciation to 31 Mar 2018 (12) (15) (107) (134)

  
Net Book Value as at 31 Mar 2017 15 62 601 678
Change in Net Book Value during Year (7) 35 142 170
Net Book Value as at 31 Mar 2018 8 97 743 848

8    Stock

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Raw Materials and Consumables 74 87

Total Stock 74 87

9    Debtors 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Trade debtors 21 59

Amounts owed by Group Undertakings 55 335
Prepayments and Accrued Income 256 275
Total Debtors 221 669

 

Page 64



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 25

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
10    Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Trade Creditors 18 47

Amounts owed to Group Undertakings 366 372

Value Added Tax 507 523

Accruals and Deferred Income 2,341 2,618
Other Creditors 706 59
Total  Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year 3,939 3,619

11   Financial Instruments

The financial instruments held are trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade 
creditors and other creditors.  All are held at amortised cost which, given their short term 
nature is estimated to equate to fair value.

The partnership’s exposure to credit risk is considered to be minimal given its principal trade 
debtor is Scottish Borders Council.  Similarly given the nature of its business it is considered 
to have limited liquidity risk.

12   Post Balance Sheet Events 

There were no post balance sheet events requiring adjustment or disclosure within the 
financial statements. 

13   Ultimate Parent Organisation 

The LLP's ultimate parent undertaking is Scottish Borders Council, one of its designated 
members, as this is the largest group into which the results of the LLP are consolidated.  The 
consolidated group financial statements of Scottish Borders Council may be obtained from 
its registered office at Scottish Borders Council offices, Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA.

Page 65



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 26

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of 
Scottish Borders Supports LLP  

TO BE INSERTED AFTER AUDIT

Page 66



Scottish Borders Supports LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Supports Cares LLP 27

Reference and Administration Information

Company Name Scottish Borders Supports LLP

Company Registration Number SO305176

Registered Office Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
Scottish Borders
TD6 0SA

Statutory Auditor KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2EG

Bankers Bank of Scotland
Level 6
110 St Vincent Street
GLASGOW
G2 5ER

Contact Information

For further information on Scottish Borders Supports LLP, please contact

Lynn Mirley
Finance and Commercial Director
SB Cares
Bristol Building
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA 

Telephone: 01835 825016
Email: info@sbcares.co.uk
Website: sbcares.co.uk

Page 67

mailto:info@sbcares.co.uk
http://www.sbcares.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Registered number SO305156

UNAUDITED

Members’ Annual Report and 
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Page 69



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 2

Contents 

Page

Members’ Annual Report 3

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities for Members Report and 
Financial Statements

13

Financial Statements

Profit and Loss Account 14

Balance Sheet 15

Statement Of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members 16

Accounting Policies 17

Notes to the Accounts 20

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members 28

Reference and Administrative Information 29

Page 70



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 3

Members’ Annual Report 

The Members present their Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 
31 March 2018.

Principal Activity 

The principal activity of Scottish Borders Cares LLP is the provision of Adult Social Care 
services. 

The partnership employs 876 staff (550 full time equivalents) in 181 positions with a number 
of staff having more than one role. 

These financial statements represent the results of the year from 1 April 2011 until 31 March 
2018. 

Designated Members 

The Members who held office during the year and to the date of these financial statements 
were as follows:

Scottish Borders Council 

SBC Nominees Limited.  

The members who held office at the date of approval of this Members’ report confirm that, so 
far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s 
Auditor is unaware; and each Member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken 
as a Member to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the Partnership’s Auditor is aware of that information. 

Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the Auditor will be deemed to be 
reappointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

SB Cares Trading Name 

Scottish Borders Cares LLP and Scottish Borders Supports LLP are both Limited Liability 
Partnerships working with Scottish Borders Council to provide Adult Social Care Services 
and collectively trade under the name of SB Cares.  

Scottish Borders Cares LLP provides adult care services to Scottish Borders Supports LLP.

Page 71



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 4

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Governance 

The two Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) that trade as SB Cares are managed by a 
single Board of Management which is subject to the provision of the individual Members 
Agreement for each of the LLPs.  Neither Scottish Borders Cares LLP nor the Board of 
Management shall make decisions in respect of the reserved matters set out in this 
agreement.

The Board of Management is employed by Scottish Borders Supports LLP and consists of:

a) The Managing Director
b) The Finance and Commercial Director
c) The Operations Director
d) The Chair

In addition, up to five additional persons can be assumed to the Board of Management, 
where the persons have skills, knowledge or experience deemed to be useful to the Board of 
Management in fulfilling its obligations and functions to the SB Cares and its Members. 
There are currently two additional persons on the Board of Management.

The meetings of the Board of Management are held on a monthly basis. 

SB Cares’ Officers meet with Scottish Borders Council quarterly at the Council’s Major 
Contracts’ Governance Group Committee which replaced its Limited Liability Partnership - 
Strategic Governance Group during 2017.  This Group enables the Council to subject SB 
Cares to appropriate review and scrutiny.  The public minutes and papers from this 
Committee can be found on the Scottish Borders Council website (www.scotborders.gov.uk).

In addition the Chief Executive of Scottish Borders Council (the Council) may at any time 
invite the SB Cares’ Officers to attend a meeting of the Council’s Corporate Management 
Team to discuss such matters related to the Members Agreement and the Services of the 
Business.

Transactions with Members 

No remuneration of Members occurred during the year.  The Members’ share in the profit or 
loss for the year is accounted for as an allocation of profits with unallocated profits and 
losses included within ‘other reserves’.  

Scottish Borders Cares LLP transacts with Scottish Borders Supports LLP not with 
Members.  These transactions are covered by a five year Service Provision Agreements 
between the two LLPs which commenced on 1 April 2015.

Page 72



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 5

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 Financial Review – Scottish Borders Cares LLP

These financial statements represent the results of the year of trading from 1 April 2017 until 
31 March 2018.  In the year ended 31 March 2018, Scottish Borders Cares LLP generated a 
loss of £735k.  The table below indicates the underlying trading (management accounting) 
basis has generated a small loss of £6k.

Year Ending 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (2,676) (735)

Remove Accounting Standard Adjustments:
IAS 19 Retirement Benefits Adjustments 2,627 723
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual 50 6

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management Accounts Basis (0) (6)

The major movement in the Financial Statements is the net increase of £723k (£2,676k in 
2016/17) in the actuarial valuation of the LLP’s Pension Liability Obligation.  The actuarial 
valuation undertaken specifically for the annual accounts, and is calculated in accordance 
with International Accounting Standard – Employee Benefits (IAS19) and uses a number of 
high level assumptions including inflation, asset growth, salary/pension increases and 
discount rate.  These assumptions are reviewed and updated on an annual basis and are 
only used for IAS19 purposes and are not relevant to calculations undertaken for funding 
purposes. 

The LLP is an admitted body within the Scottish Borders Pension Fund (the Fund), which is 
a Local Government Pension Scheme and, under the management arrangements of this 
scheme, the funding valuations are undertaken every three years (the Triennial Valuation).  
The most recent Triennial Valuation was undertaken during 2017/18 and this resulted in a 
full revaluation of the funding position for the LLP’s pension obligations and included an 
assessment of employer contribution rates for the future 3 years.  This recent valuation 
determined that the pension obligations of the LLP are more than covered by the assets 
under management by the Fund as at the valuation.

The final result of the Triennial Valuation was that the Fund’s actuary estimates that the 
LLP’s pension assets are equivalent to 113% of the projected liabilities.  This is a positive 
result for the LLP and has also meant that the employer contribution rate will not be required 
to change in the next 3 years from the current levels.

Overall the LLP performed as expected for the year of trading delivering services through its 
contract with Scottish Borders Supports LLP.

Page 73



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 6

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Business Review – SB Cares

As stated previously Scottish Borders Supports LLP is one of the two entities which combine 
to trade as SB Cares.  As the Board of Management sets the strategic objectives and 
oversees the performance and management of the two LLPs as a combined whole, the 
Business Review is being presented as a joint review of both Scottish Borders Cares LLP 
and Scottish Borders Supports LLP.

Strategic Context

SB Cares’ Vision is to:

SB Cares will focus on our three Strategic Aims in order to support the delivery of this 
Vision and these are:

To have a team of staff who deliver seamless, high quality care and support
to every clientQuality

To deploy our staff, resources and finances as effficiently and effectively as
possible, ensuring best valueEfficiency

To expand and grow the services we provide for the people of the Scottish
Borders and generate income to invest in future care servicesBusiness

These Strategic Aims underpin all of our priorities and actions, with Quality being the key 
aim of all that we do.  The Board of Management has agreed six priorities on which the 
Board and the Senior Management Team have developed action plans for delivering, 
developing and improving the services to our clients.  Our Priorities are as follows:

SB
Cares'

Strategic

Invest in our Staff to
Improve Client

Outcomes

Build on Key
Partnerships

Make our Services as
Efficient and Effective

as possible

Modernise our
Services through

Technology

Grow and Develop our
Business

Develop Excellent
Governance

become the provider of choice for 
adult social care services in the Scottish Borders

Page 74



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 7

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

2017/18 – Summary of Our Activities
2017/18 has been a very busy and successful year for SB Cares and this report, at the end 
of our third year of trading, provides an overview of the activities throughout the year. 

Key Facts and Figures for 2017/18

SB Cares supported over 12,000 clients, families and carers through the provision of its 
adult social cares services throughout the Scottish Borders by:

 Delivering over 15,000 visits per week to enable more than 900 people to remain in 
their own homes.

 Delivering 11,840 pieces of additional ability equipment to support 2,336 new clients 
to live more independently, with a total of 9,818 clients using equipment on loan 
from the Community Equipment Service at the end of the financial year.

 Supporting 1,545 clients and another 291 individual homes in supported housing 
schemes to maintain independence with 24 hour monitored personal alarms 

 Providing 24 hour support through 143 beds in a care home environment for those 
people with higher level needs

 Supporting clients through our day services enabling people to remain at home and 
providing respite to families and carers

Delivering Our Strategic Priorities during 2017/18

 Invest in our Staff to Improve Client Outcomes
SB Cares has:

a. Improved its Support Worker induction programme in order to continue to improve 
quality of care to clients;

b. updated its approach to recruitment through the introduction of rolling annual 
recruitment for Support Workers;

c. implemented revised organisational structures for the management of both Care and 
Financial & Commercial Services, with additional focus on quality;

d. reviewed Homecare operations and is in the process of implementing new positions 
to support improving quality of care, and effectiveness of scheduling visits; and

e. agreed a revised Communication, Engagement and Marketing Strategy.

Page 75



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 8

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

 Build on Key Partnerships
SB Cares has:

a. established a new Discharge to Assess Care Home at Craw Wood, Tweedbank to 
provide a short term supported transition from acute medical care in hospital prior to 
returning home, and this has been done under the Integrated Joint Board for Health 
and Social Care in partnership with NHS Borders; and

b. worked with Borders College to develop new social care courses, which SB Cares 
staff are able to participate in as part of their development.

 Make our Services as Efficient and Effective as possible
SB Cares has:

a. implemented a staffing model across the Scottish Borders for local home care 
teams which provides a consistent, more responsive and flexible 7 day service;

b. implemented the first phase of a dedicated 4x4 vehicle fleet for the home care 
teams which supports improved continuity of care provision to clients during 
adverse winter weather, and opens up employment opportunities to individuals with 
limited personal vehicle access;

c. established the first single care registration for a co-located older people and 
learning disabilities day service in Peebles which has resulted in improved 
outcomes and experiences for clients in both services; and

d. Changed the approach to the provision of meals within our Care Homes reducing 
costs without impacting on quality or flexibility of service.

 Modernise our Services through Technology
SB Cares has:
a. transitioned the alarm monitoring and out of hours’ telephony services of Border Care 

to East Lothian Council’s centre of excellence in order to secure the benefits new 
technology for call handling, which will enable us to provide a cost effective services 
and deliver increased service’s resilience and improved overall caller experience; and

b. transferred its Community Equipment Service into a purpose built facility with modern 
cleaning facilities and delivery vehicles with bespoke fittings to separate issued and 
returned equipment, all of which contribute to improvements in infection control.

 Grow and Develop our Business
SB Cares has:
a. sustained better than expected client retention following the significant price increase 

for Bordercare Alarm services agreed by the Council as part of its charging reviews, 
resulting in approximately £150k increased turnover.

 Develop Excellent Governance
SB Cares has:

a. continued to improve the quality care with 85% of their registered care services 
receiving Care Inspectorate grades of Good or above.

b. engaged effectively with the Council’s Major Contracts Governance Group, Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee and Corporate Management Team and delivered significant 
elements of the Health and Social Care Partnership’s strategic agenda.

Page 76



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 9

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Quality of Our Care

Our registered care services continue to be regulated by the Care Inspectorate and are 
inspected regularly through their programme.  During 2017/18, SB Cares continued to see 
an overall improvement in the quality of the scores achieved in many of our registered 
services and the chart below shows the cumulative scores demonstrates these 
improvements.

261

270

286

2014 2015 * 2016 2017
255

260

265

270

275

280

285

290

SB Cares' Care Inspection Score

Cu
m

m
ul

at
ei

ve
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Sc
or

es

* 2015 SB Cares first registered  services  no  inspections  took place

In addition, the proportion of our registered services achieving very good and above has 
risen from 15% in 2015/16 to 39% in 2017/18.

Page 77



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 10

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Risk Management 
Corporate Risk Management

SB Cares recognises the importance of the management of corporate risk and applies 
appropriate corporate governance to ensure it is successfully monitored and managed. 

SB Cares has adopted the Council’s corporate risk policy to embed risk management into its 
business practices.  SB Cares has continued to monitor, manage and mitigate risk through 
the proactive management of its risk register and associated actions.

The register is reviewed by reflect risks and mitigations associated with the delivery of its 
current Business Plan.  The risk register will be regularly reviewed by its Senior 
Management Team and Board of Management as part of its performance monitoring 
processes.

The Council’s Audit & Risk function, as part of the Service Level Agreement, carries out 
regular audits of business functions and areas of risk whose findings are reported to the 
Board of Management.  The Council’s Head of Audit and Risk and Risk Manager attend the 
Board of Management meetings on a quarterly basis.

Public Sector Financial Pressures

The overall pressure on public finances continues to be the dominant risk to SB Cares. 
Budget pressures and service reduction within the Council has an effect on SB Cares as it 
provides key services to this main client. SB Cares continues to monitor the change in 
business operation and address the mitigation of risk proactively.  This is accomplished 
through working closely with its key partners and our clients as well as reviewing our 
business model to secure continuous improvement.

Financial Management

Cash flow management procedures are in place to ensure that resources are managed 
effectively. 

The Board of Management receive a monthly update on the financial position for SB Cares 
and this includes narrative commentary on movements and updating of the forecast out-turn 
for the organisation.

Page 78



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 11

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

Combined Financial Position –SB Cares – 2017/18
SB Cares as a trading entity reports to the Board of Management on a monthly basis, 
presenting the financial position on a management accounting basis (i.e. excluding the 
impact of the accounting for retirement benefits).  This allows informed monitoring and 
evaluation of the trading financial position.  The table below shows the combined position for 
the 2 LLPs, showing the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure reported position per the 
2017/18 Annual Accounts and the underlying trading position for 2017/18.

Year Ending 31 March 2018
SB 

Supports 
LLP

SB Cares 
LLP

Total 
SB Cares

£000 £000 £000
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 44 (735) (691)
International Accounting Standard Adjustments:  

IAS 119 Retirement Benefits Adjustments 0 723 723
SBC Service Efficiency Contract Rebate 465 465
Movement in Annual Leave Accrual (1) 6 5

Income/(Loss) for the year on a Management 
Accounts Basis 508 (6) 502

The budget was fully reviewed and revised in June/July 2017 and the SB Cares Board of 
Management have received regular monitoring reports on progress during the year.  An 
overall assessment of the combined results of the Scottish Borders Supports and Scottish 
Borders Cares LLPs has resulted in the generation of an efficiency contribution on the 
annual contract fee for services of £465k on top of previously achieved reductions in the 
contract.

The table below identifies what SB Cares has been able to contribute through contractual 
rebates as part of its trading arrangements with the Council:

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£000 £000 £000

Recurring Savings returned to SBC:
2015/16
2017/18

480 480 480
465

Total Recurring Savings 480 480 945

One-Off Savings returned to SBC - 2016/17 600

Annual Savings 480 1,080 945

% of Contractual Management Fee 3% 7% 6%

Cumulative Savings 480 1,560 2,505

Page 79



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 12

Members’ Annual Report (continued)

This year’s contribution has been achieved by a variety of efficiency projects undertaken 
during the year including:

 roll out of improved Home Care scheduling and rotas; 
 fleet optimisation activity especially in Home Care and the Community Equipment 

Service;
 implementing a new meal service within Care Homes; and
 reviewing the shopping service.

In conclusion the Members Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 
2018, demonstrate that SB Cares continues to improve and drive forward with its service 
and financial priorities.

The Members’ Annual Report was signed on behalf of Members by

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr

For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

[date]

Page 80



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 13

Statement of Members’ Responsibilities in respect of the 
Members’ Report and the Financial Statements 

The Members are responsible for preparing the Members' Report and the LLP financial 
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

The Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006) 
Regulations 2008 require the Members to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year.  Under that law the Members have elected to prepare the LLP financial statements in 
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. 

Under Regulation 8 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008 the Members must not approve the financial 
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the LLP and of the profit or loss of the LLP for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the Members are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to 

any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the LLP will continue in business. 

Under Regulation 6 of the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of 
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008, the Members are responsible for keeping adequate 
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the LLP's transactions and 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the LLP and enable 
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with those regulations.  They have 
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the 
assets of the LLP and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and 
financial information included on the SB Cares’ website.  Legislation in the UK governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions.

Page 81



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 14

Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 

2017 2018

£000 £000

Notes

14,920 Turnover 14,890 1
(16,000) Cost of Sales (17,227) 2, 6

(1,080) Gross Profit / (Loss) (2,337)

0 Administrative Expenses 0

(1,080) Profit / (Loss) on Ordinary Activities after Taxation (2,337)

(1,080) Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year Available for 
Discretionary Division Among Members (2,337)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):

(1,596) Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from Pension Obligations 1,602 6

(2,676) Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (735)

 SB Cares LLP’s turnover and expenses all relate to continuing operations.

Page 82



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 15

Balance Sheet 
at 31 March

2017 2018

£000 £000

Notes

Current Assets
429 Debtors 408 4

4 Cash at Bank and in Hand 6
433 414

Creditors
(779) Amounts failing due within 1 year (772) 5

(346) Net Current Assets / (Liabilities) (358)

(3,624) Provisions for Liabilities – Pension and Similar 
Obligations (4,347) 6

(3,970) Net Assets / (Liabilities) attributable to Members (4,705)

Represented by:

Members’ Other Interests:
0 Members Capital Account 0

3,624 Pensions Reserve 4,347
346 Profit and Loss Reserve 358

3,970 4,705

3,970 Total Members’ Interests 4,705

Page 83



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 16

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Members

For the year ended 31 March 

Members 
Capital 

Account
Pension 
Reserve

Profit & 
Loss 

Reserve

Total 
Members 
Interests

£000 £000 £000 £000
     

Balance at 1 April 2016 0 (997) (297) (1,294)
    

Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year 
Available for Discretionary Division 
Among Members

 (1,080) 1,080

    

Movement in Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from 
Pension Obligations (1,596) (1,596)

Transfer to/From Pension Reserve  (1,031) 1,031 0
    

Balance at 31 March 2017 0 (3,624) (346) (3,970)

Balance at 1 April 2017 0 (3,624) (346) (3,970)
    

Profit/(Loss) for the Financial Year 
Available for Discretionary Division 
Among Members

 (2,337) (2,337)

Movement in Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from 
Pension Obligations 1,602 1,602
    

Transfer to/From Pension Reserve  (2,325) 2,325 0
    

Balance at 31 March 2018 0 (4,347) (358) (4,705)

The Accounting Policies on pages 16 to 18 and the Notes to the Accounts on pages 
19 to 26 form part of these Financial Statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Members and authorised for issue 
on TBC 2018 and were signed on its behalf by: 

[SIGNATURE REQUIRED]

Philip Barr
For and on behalf of 
Scottish Borders Council
Designated member 

Company registered number: SO305156
[DATE]

Page 84



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 17

Accounting Policies
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which 
are considered material in relation to the Limited Liability Partnership’s financial statements. 

(i) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting 
standards under the historical cost accounting rules.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS101.  In preparing 
these financial statements, the Company applied the recognition, measurement and 
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
EU but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 
2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS101 disclosure exemptions have 
been taken.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under 
FRS101 in respect of the following disclosures:

 a cash flow statement and related notes;
 comparative period reconciliations of share capital;
 the effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and
 disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnel.

As the LLP is a wholly owned subsidiary of Scottish Borders Council, the LLP has taken 
advantage of the exemption contained in International Accounting Standard 24 'related 
parties' (“IAS24”) and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with entities 
which form part of the group as related parties. 

(ii) Going Concern
The LLP’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, 
performance and position, are set out in the Members’ report on page 3.  The Members have 
a reasonable expectation that despite there being a significant negative net worth at the end 
of the year the LLP has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future with a service provision agreement in place with Scottish Borders 
Supports LLP until March 2020 and a guarantee for SB Cares pension liability by Scottish 
Borders Council. Thus Members continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the annual financial statements. 

(iii) Members' Remuneration and Allocation of Profits 
Members are not remunerated by the LLP.  A Member's share in the profit or loss for the 
accounting period is accounted for as an allocation of profits.  Unallocated profits and losses 
are included within 'other reserves'. 

(iv) Members' Capital 
The capital requirements of the LLP are determined from time to time by the Members.  No 
interest is paid on capital. 

Page 85



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 18

Accounting Policies (continued) 

(v) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
The LLP is registered for VAT purposes.  Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant 
expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.  Where 
output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 

(vi) Taxation
Taxation on all partnership profits is solely the liability of individual members.  Consequently 
neither taxation nor related deferred taxation arising in the LLP are accounted for in these 
financial statements. 

(vii) Income Recognition 
Income is recognised in the accounting period to which it relates.  Income from grants, 
contracts and other services rendered is included to the extent of the completion of the 
contract or service concerned.  Income received in advance is included in the balance sheet 
within creditors: amounts falling due within one year. 

(viii) Trade and Other Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less 
any impairment losses.

(ix) Trade and Other Creditors
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at fair value.  Subsequent to initial 
recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(x) Interest-Bearing Borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised 
cost using the effective interest model, less any impairment losses.

(xi) Financial Assets (including Trade and Other Debtors)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit and loss is assessed at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.  A 
financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the 
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be measured reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated 
as the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  Interest on the impaired asset 
continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.  When a subsequent 
event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through profit and loss.

Page 86



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 19

Accounting policies (continued) 

(xii) Retirement Benefits 
All existing and new Members of staff have the option of joining the SB Cares Pension Fund 
("the Fund").  The Fund is a defined benefit pension scheme, providing benefits based on 
final pensionable pay, which is contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension Fund. 
Assets and liabilities of the Fund are held separately from those of the LLP.  Fund assets are 
measured using market values.  For quoted securities the current bid price is taken as 
market value.  Fund liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at 
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to 
the liability. 

The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that it is recoverable) or deficit is recognised in 
full.  The movement in the scheme surplus/deficit is split between operating charges, finance 
items and, in the statement of total recognised gains and losses, actuarial gains and losses. 

Page 87



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 20

Notes to Annual Accounts
(forming part of the financial statements) 

1    Turnover 
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods and services supplied under the principal 
activities of the LLP. 

2    Staff Numbers and Costs 

The average Full Time Equivalent (FTE) number of persons employed by the LLP during the 
year, analysed by category, was as follows: 

2016/17 2017/18

Number of Employees - Front Line Services Staff (FTE)* 553 550
*2016/17 restated following FTE adjustment for relief/casual staff

Staff costs for the above persons were: £000 £000

Wages and salaries 11,828 11,860

Social security costs 777 788
Pension costs 2,790 4,100
Total Staff Costs 15,395 16,748

3   Particulars of Members 

The number of Members of the Limited Liability Partnership for the year was two.  No 
remuneration was paid to either Member.

4    Debtors 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Trade Debtors 2 2

Amounts Owed by Group Undertakings 376 334
Prepayments and Accrued Income 3 4
Value Added Tax 22 25
Other Debtors 26 43

Total Debtors 429 408
 

Page 88



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 21

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
5    Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year 

As at 31 March
2017
£000

2018
£000

Other taxation and social security (344) (363)

Accruals and deferred income (432) (408)
Other creditors (3) (1)
Total  Creditors: Amounts falling due within One Year (779) (772)

6   Employee Benefits 

The information disclosed below is in respect of the LLP’s share of assets and liabilities 
within the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund, in which it is a participating employer.  
The latest full actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 and reported a 113% 
funding level. 

The Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund is a defined benefit statutory scheme 
administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) 
Regulations 2014, is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides 
benefits based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement. 

In accordance with the agreement between Scottish Borders Council and Scottish Borders 
Cares LLP, no liability was transferred from the Council to the LLP at the date of 
incorporation and a guarantee relating to the pension liability is in place from the Council to 
the LLP.

Governance
The administering authority for the Fund is Scottish Borders Council.  The Pension Fund 
Committee oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration 
is undertaken by a team within the administering authority.  Where appropriate some 
functions are delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers.  The LLP has the opportunity to 
participate in the Pension Fund through Employers’ meetings and the Pension 
Board/Committee should a vacancy arise. 

As administering authority to the Fund, Scottish Borders Council, after consultation with the 
Fund Actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance 
of the Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles.  These 
should be amended when appropriate based on the Fund’s performance and funding.

Page 89



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 22

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
6   Employee Benefits (continued)

Risk exposure
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Employer is 
exposed to a number of risks: 

Investment risk The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which 
have volatile market values and while these assets are expected to 
provide real returns over the long-term, the short-term volatility can 
cause additional funding to be required if a deficit emerges; 

Interest rate risk The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality 
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows.  As the Fund 
holds assets such as equities the value of the assets and liabilities may 
not move in the same way; 

Inflation risk All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits 
may emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation; and 

Longevity risk In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will 
emerge in the Fund.  There are also other demographic risks. 

In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Scottish Borders Council Pension 
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient 
assets to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining 
employers. 

All of the risks above may also benefit the Employer e.g. higher than expected investment 
returns or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by 
the remaining employers.

Amendments, curtailments and settlements

Past service costs/gains 
Past service costs/gains arise as a result of introduction or withdrawal of, or changes to, 
member benefits.  For example, an award of additional discretionary benefits to a Member 
such as added years by a Member would be considered a past service cost. 

We are not aware of any additional benefits which were granted over the year ending         
31 March 2018.

Curtailments 
The cost of curtailments arising as a result of the payment of unreduced pensions on early 
retirement have been calculated at the point of exit, with interest applied to the accounting 
date accounted for separately. 

Over the year, two former employees became entitled to unreduced early retirement 
benefits.  The capitalised cost of the additional benefits on FRS101 compliant assumptions 
is calculated at £5,000.  This figure has been included within service cost in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

Page 90



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 23

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
6   Employee Benefits (continued)

Settlements 
We are not aware of any liabilities being settled at a cost materially different to the 
accounting reserve during the year.

The assets and defined benefit obligations prior to 1 April 2015 will be accounted and 
disclosed for within Scottish Borders Council for service prior to the transfer date. 

2017
£000

2018
£000

Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit Obligations (8,864) (13,285)

Fair Value of Plan Assets 5,240 8,938

Net Pension Liability (3,624) (4,347)

Year to 31 March
Movements in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation: 2017

£000
2018
£000

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 3,184 8,864

Current Service Cost 2,784 4,052

Past Service Costs - 5

Interest Cost  132 255

Actuarial Losses/(Gains) 2,169 (343)

Contributions by Members 545 569

Estimated Benefits Paid Net of Transfers in 50 (117)

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 8,864 13,285

Year to 31 March
Movements in Fair Value of Plan Assets: 2017

£000
2018
£000

Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 2,187 5,240

Expected Return on Plan Assets 699 1,435

Contributions by Employer 1,759 1,811

Contributions by Members 545 569

Estimated Benefits Paid plus Unfunded Net Of Transfers In 50 (117)

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 5,240 8,938

Page 91



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 24

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
6   Employee Benefits (continued)

Year to 31 March

2017
£000

2018
£000

Recognised in the Profit and Loss Account:
Service Cost 2,784 4,057

Interest on Defined Benefit Pension Plan Obligation 5 77

Administration Expenses 1 2

Recognised Pensions Service Costs 2,790 4,136

Re-measurements in Other Comprehensive Income:

Return on Fund Assets in Excess of Interest 573 144

Other Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Assets - 1,115

Change in Financial Assumptions (2,169) 742

Change in Demographic Assumptions - 341

Experience Gain/(Loss) on Defined Pension Obligation - (740)

Re-measurements of Net Assets / (Defined Liability) (1,596) 1,602

2017 2018The Fair Value of the Plan Assets and the 
Return on those Assets were as follows: £000 % £000 %

Equities 3,648 70 5,196 58

Gilts 83 2 1,359 15

Other Bonds 428 8 - -

Property 269 5 1,261 14

Cash 16 - 10 -

Multi-Asset Fund 796 15 647 7

Private Credit - - 415 5

Infrastructure - - 0 1

Total Estimated Fair Value of Plan Assets 5,240 100% 8,938 100%

Page 92



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 25

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
6   Employee Benefits (continued) 

The assumptions used in the estimation of Fair Value of Plan Assets and Defined Benefit 
Obligations are consistent with those used in the most recent Fund valuation, which was 
carried out as at 31 March 2017.  This has been updated since the 2016/17 Financial 
Statements when these assumptions were based on the 31 March 2014 valuation of the 
Pension Fund.   

In valuing the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund for the Financial Statements at 
31 March 2018, assumptions have been made as indicated below. 

Asset Valuation Actuarial Assumptions:
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) at the year end were as 
follows: 

2017 
%

2018 
%

Discount Rate 2.8 3.8
Future Salary Increases 3.7 4.3
Pension Increase Rate 2.7 2.5
RPI 3.6 3.4
CPI 2.7 2.5

Demographic Assumptions:
The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet 
date are based on standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future 
improvements in longevity

The assumptions are equivalent to expecting a 65 year old to live for a number of years as 
follows: 

Life Expectancy from age 65 as at 31 March
(in years) 

2017 2018
Males Females Males Females

Employee retiring today 22.9 23.8 21.6 24.2
Employee retiring in 20 years 25.2 26.1 23.3 26.0

Financial Assumptions
The financial assumptions were set with reference to market conditions at 31 March 218 and  
include:

Financial 
Assumptions (%)

2017 2018
Discount Rate 2.80 2.60
Pension Increases 2.70 2.30
Salary Increases 3.70 3.30

The LLP expects to contribute approximately £1.8 million to its defined benefit plan in the 
next financial period. 

Page 93



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 26

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
6   Employee Benefits (continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis
The following sensitivity analysis relating to the adjustment of various assumptions has been 
undertaken by the actuary.

£000 £000 £000
Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 12,933 13,285 13,647
Projected service cost 3,741 3,848 3,958

Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 13,284 13,285 13,286
Projected service cost 3,850 3,848 3,846

Adjustment to pension increases and deferred re-
evaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%

Present value of total obligation 13,649 13,285 12,931
Projected service cost 3,956 3,848 3,743

Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +1 year None -1 Year
Present value of total obligation 13,725 13,285 12,860
Projected service cost 3,971 3,848 3,729

7   Financial Instruments

The financial instruments held are trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade 
creditors and other creditors.  All are held at amortised cost which, given their short term 
nature is estimated to equate to fair value.

The partnership’s exposure to credit risk is considered to be minimal given its principal trade 
debtor is Scottish Borders Council.  Similarly given the nature of its business it is considered 
to have limited liquidity risk.

8  Contingent Liabilities 

There has been a European Court of Justice ruling relating to the payment of mobile 
workers.  The financial implications of this judgement for Scottish Borders Cares LLP are 
unclear at present and therefore, in agreement with our External Auditors, a contingent 
liability has been included in this years’ annual accounts.

Page 94



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 27

Notes to Annual Accounts (continued)  
10   Post Balance Sheet Events 

There were no post balance sheet events requiring adjustment or disclosure within the 
financial statements. 

11   Ultimate Parent Organisation 

The LLP's ultimate parent undertaking is Scottish Borders Council, one of its designated 
members, as this is the largest group into which the results of the LLP are consolidated.  The 
consolidated group financial statements of Scottish Borders Council may be obtained from 
its registered office at Scottish Borders Council offices, Newtown St Boswells, TD6 0SA.

Page 95



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 28

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of 
Scottish Borders Cares LLP  

TO BE INSERTED AFTER AUDIT

Page 96



Scottish Borders Cares LLP
Unaudited Members’ Report and Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Scottish Borders Cares LLP 29

Reference and Administration Information

Company Name Scottish Borders Cares LLP

Company Registration Number SO305156

Registered Office Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
Scottish Borders
TD6 0SA

Statutory Auditor KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2EG

Bankers Bank of Scotland
Level 6
110 St Vincent Street
GLASGOW
G2 5ER

Actuary Barnett Waddingham LLP
163 W George Street
GLASGOW
G2 2JJ

Contact Information

For further information on Scottish Borders Cares LLP, please contact

Lynn Mirley
Finance and Commercial Director
SB Cares
Bristol Building
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA 

Telephone: 01835 825016
Email: info@sbcares.co.uk
Website: sbcares.co.uk

Page 97

mailto:info@sbcares.co.uk
http://www.sbcares.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

SB CARES 2018/19 PROJECTS UPDATE

Report by Finance and Commercial Director

MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP

12 July 2018

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 To provide an update  on the programme of projects being 
undertaken by SB Cares during 2018/19.  

1.2 The SB Cares’ Board took the slightly amended approach to include all 
projects being taken forward in 2018/19 within the Programme to be 
monitored and progress tracked.

1.3 The projects will be grouped by the Business Plan Strategic Aim’s - Quality, 
Efficiency and Business Growth.

1.4 Appendix 1 contains an overview of the projects that are to be delivered 
during 2018/19.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Major Contracts Governance Group note the 
progress developing the 2018/19 Programme.

Page 99

Agenda Item 7



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 The SB Cares’ Board received the following update on the projects that 
made up the 2017/18 Transformation Programme at the May 2018 
meeting:

Project Name Project Objective Project Status

Equipment Sales Maximise income from direct sales of equipment Green Ongoing

Rota and 
Scheduling Implementation of 8 Week Rota Amber Ongoing

Supplies and 
Services Savings Efficiencies through procurement Green Ongoing

Travel Cost 
Reductions

Reduce cost of Business Miles and make best use of 
Fleet options including electric vehicles currently in 
use.  

Green Ongoing

Day Services 
Review

Relocate clients to alternative day service to meet 
their outcomes Green Ongoing

Alarms Service 
New Income

Maximise income from direct sales of alarms 
services Green Ongoing

Alarms Service 
Delivery Review 

Review alternative options of service delivery for 
Personal Alarms Service Complete

Shopping Service 
Review Review of Shopping Service model Complete

Kitchens in care 
homes Review remaining on site catering provision Complete

4 SB CARES 2018/19 PROGRAMME

4.1 As part of a refocus on delivering the programme of work that has already 
been highlighted to the Board in previous meetings linked to our Business 
Plan and the programme of work to deliver the contract contribution/rebate 
to the Council a single consistent approach to monitor all activity is 
proposed.

4.2 Within the Business Plan we state that SB Cares will focus on our three 
Strategic Aims in order to support the delivery of our Vision to “become the 
provider of choice for adult social care services in the Scottish Borders”, and 
these are:

Page 100



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

To have a team of staff who deliver seamless, high quality care and
support to every clientQuality

To deploy our staff, resources and finances as effficiently and
effectively as possible, ensuring best valueEfficiency

To expand and grow the services we provide for the people of the
Scottish Borders and generate income to invest in future care services

Business
Growth

4.3 It is proposed to group our Programme of Projects under each of these 
Strategic Themes.

4.4 Progress on these Projects will be monitored monthly, in detail at a 
dedicated Senior Management Team and then a summary tracker will be 
presented to the SB Cares’ Board each month and the Major Contracts 
Governance Group at each meeting.

4.5 Appendix 1 provides the current, high level Programme of Projects that has 
been developed.  It is the intention that this will be a “living” document 
which will bring together all of the activities that are being taken forward to 
improve the quality of our care, the efficiency of our services and the 
growth of our business.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial 

This report provides an update on the SB Cares’ Programme of Projects for 
2018/19 in terms of high level projects and Appendix 1 indicates the 
Council’s Financial Savings targets allocated to the specific projects as well 
as highlighting the investment required.

5.2 Risk and Mitigations

This report provides an update on the SB Cares’ Programme of Projects for 
2018/19 in terms of high level projects being undertaken and how they will 
be monitored and tracked to ensure that these are delivered.  This in itself 
is part of SB Cares’ mitigation to ensure timely delivery of projects and their 
outcomes, as well as timely management action to make necessary 
adjustments to the Programme in event of new circumstances impacting on 
SB Cares’ plans.

5.3 Equalities

An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required as there is no decision to 
be made as part of this report, these will be required at individual project 
level as appropriate.

5.4 Acting Sustainably 

There are no economic, social or environmental effects as a result of this 
report.

Page 101



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

5.5 Carbon Management

There are no effects on carbon emissions as a result of this report.

5.6 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

There are no changes required as a result of this report.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The SB Cares’ Board of Management considered proposals at its meeting on 
the 28 June 2018.

Approved by

Name Philip Barr Signature ……………………..
Title Managing Director, SB Cares

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Lynn Mirley Finance and Commercial Director, SB Cares

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  You can also request information 
on other language translations as well as the provision additional copies.

Contact us at Corporate & Commercial Services Team, SB Cares, Bristol Building, 
Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE TD6 0SA

Page 102



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

SB Cares 
 2018/19 Programme of Projects -  High Level Summary 
 As at 01 July 2018 

Appendix 1

DRAFT
     

Project Project Objective Investment Required
18/19 

Financial Plan    
Savings Target

£000
Timeframe 

Recruitment

Efficient and Effective Programme of Recruitment to ensure: 

- Front-line staff numbers are meet required staffing levels; 
- Reduced pressures on staff and management; and
- Improved quality of care

Alternative Routes for Advertising 
positions £TBA

N/A

By Oct ‘18

Training & 
Induction

Effective Training & Induction of Staff to ensure:

- Better quality of care;
- Improved management of service provision and staff; and
- Higher productivity and efficiency

SBC Transformation Resource 
Dedicated Training Manager 

Budget Transfer from SBC of 
Training Budget

Investment in additional Training to 
address shortfalls - £TBA

N/A

 By Apr’19

Care Inspection 
Action Plans

Deliver a Programme of Activity to proactively deliver the 
action plans to meet the Care Inspection Requirements & 
Recommendations.

Investment may be required as a 
result of 
recommendations/requirements. 
£TBA

Utilise Council’s Capital Allocation for 
SB Cares to address some of the 
works. £TBA

N/A
 Ongoing – 
timeframes 

within 
individual 

action plans

Q
U

AL
IT

Y

Care Home 
Staffing

Deliver a best value staffing structure in care homes including:
- implementing an equitable Support Worker Structure; and

- reviewing overnight staffing models including sleep-in 
arrangements

 N/A
(10)

(40)

By Oct’18 

By Oct’18

P
age 103



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

Project Project Objective Investment Required
18/19 

Financial Plan    
Savings Target

£000
Timeframe 

Homecare Review

Deliver better quality  Homecare which is managed effectively 
through the implementation of:

- Homecare rota on a full shift payment basis, and
- Senior Support Workers in Homecare; and
- review structures including implementation of Schedulers and 
refocus of Asst Homecare Managers

SBC Transformation Funding for 
Scheduler Pilot - 2 posts – due to be 
graded in July 2018. £N/A

10 Senior Support Worker posts to 
be implemented during 2018/19 
£TBA – 50- 75% time homecare 
client contact. £TBA

No additional 
savings in 

18/19, lower 
cost base 

following 17/18 
actions

 By Dec’18

Q
U

AL
IT

Y 
(C

O
N

TD
.)

Communications

Deliver the Communications, Engagement & Marketing Plan to 
ensure:

- Our Values are a fundamental part of our client experience
- Our staff are informed, engaged and involved
- Proactively engage with  our clients through effective use of 
social and digital media
- A clear and consistent brand identity with a reputation for high 
quality care
- Promotion of SB Cares in the Adult Social Care market

 Printing costs associated with 
distributing information to dispersed 
clients/staff. £TBA

Cost of any staff meetings – covered 
from within existing budgets

N/A

 Ongoing

     

Project Project Objective Investment Required
18/19 

Financial Plan    
Savings Target

£000
Timeframe 

Workforce 
Management - 
Absence

Deliver reductions in overtime/agency cost through more 
effective management of workforce absence.

SBC Transformation Funding for 
dedicated HR Advisory support (75) Ongoing

EF
FI

CI
EN

CY

Workforce 
Management - 
Overtime 

Deliver reductions in enhanced overtime cost through more 
effective management of the workforce.

 N/A
(75)  Ongoing

P
age 104



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

Project Project Objective Investment Required
18/19 

Financial Plan    
Savings Target

£000
Timeframe 

Alarm Monitoring 
Service

Deliver best value alarm and out of hours call management 
through transfer of service to East Lothian

Investment already undertaken as 
part of 17/18 costs

(150)
Full year impact 

of transition
Completed

Independent 
Living Services 
(Community 
Equipment 
Services & 
Bordercare) 
Review

Deliver an integrated, fit for future workforce & service delivery 
model with customer focused staff providing 
high quality and cost effective Technology & Equipment 
services to support Independent Living in the Scottish Borders.

N/A
(20)

Stretch 
additional (60)

By Mar’19 

Fleet 
Management

Deliver cost effective fleet management within SB Cares 
through:
- increasing the Homecare pool care fleet; and

- review the fleet/transport management arrangements across 
the organisation

SBC Transformation Funding for 
additional Fleet Manager within Fleet 
Services

Capital Investment in additional pool 
vehicles (circa £14k per vehicle)

(20)

(10)
By Mar’19 

Relief Staff 
Management

Deliver a Relief Bank and an efficient and effective 
management system for this which is accessible and enables 
staff to "self-serve"

Investment in system to manage 
relief staff £TBA
Dependent on links with wider SBC 
Project

(20) TBA

Improved 
Performance 
Reporting
 

Deliver improved Performance Reporting for SB Cares to 
improve decision making, service delivery and contract 
management

Staff Time will be required to 
undertake the redevelopment work. 
£TBA

 N/A By Mar’19 

EF
FI

CI
EN

CY
 (C

O
N

TD
.)

Financial and 
Administration 
Process Review

Ensure fit for purpose financial and administrative processes 
within SB Cares to reduce the burden on staff, create 
consistency and standardisation and improve the internal 
controls framework.

Staff Time will be required to 
undertake the redevelopment work. 
£TBA

 N/A  By Dec’18

P
age 105



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

     

Project Project Objective Investment Required
18/19 Financial 
Plan    Savings 

Target
£000

Timeframe 

BU
SI

N
ES

S 
G

RO
W

TH

Commercial 
Development 
Programme

Delivery of the Programme to introduce profitable additional 
commercial activities within SB Cares and create the 
appropriate infrastructure required to support this effectively.

£TBA once plan further developed. (36)
(Gross 

Contribution pa)
Phase 1 

by Dec’18 

P
age 106



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

CARE INSPECTION

Report by Operations Director 

MAJOR CONTRACTS GOVERNANCE GROUP 

12 July 2018

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 To update the Major Contracts Governance Group on Care 
Inspections of SB Cares Services.  

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Since last reporting to the Major Contracts Governance Group the final 
inspection report for Home Care East has been received, with confirmed 
grades of 3 for the 3 Quality themes inspected.

Deanfield Care Home has also been inspected, with grades as follows 
Quality of Care and Support 4, Quality of Environment 4, Quality of Staffing 
3 and Quality of Management 3. 

SB Cares has successfully bid for transformation money to recruit a 
specialist Social Care training professional to assist with reviewing the 
current quality and availability of the training being provided.  They will 
also support the further development of People Plan.  This post will support 
the delivery of training to meet the final aspect of the requirement in the 
report concerning the training of staff.  Although the vast majority of 
actions were completed, due to the inspection methodology there is a 
repeated requirement from the previous inspection regarding the need for 
improved availability of training and the need for competency assessments 
to be introduced for training courses delivered. 

Oakview Day Service has recently been inspected we will report on the 
outcome at the next meeting. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is  recommended that the Major Contracts Governance Group:- 

a) Note the updated Home Care East report 

b) Note the recent Deanfield Care Home Inspection Grades

c) Note the recruitment of the specialist training professional

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

3 INSPECTIONS

3.1 The Home Care East final report has been received.  This report gives a far 
more balanced account of the service being provided, with improvements 
being recognised, as well as areas where improvement is necessary.  The 
action plan has been developed with the Registered Manager to focus on all 
areas of the service needing improvements.  There is also a requirement 
and recommendation regarding the requirement to improve the availability 
of training and the need for competency assessment of the training being 
provided.  Service Managers are working with our Scottish Borders Council 
colleagues, who provide this support to SB Cares, to improve in the 
identified areas, within the identified timescales.  The Training Post will 
support the progression of this work.

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Deanfield Care Home has recently been inspected and although there is a 
reduction in grades from last year’s inspection, we are confident with the 
actions and improvements already made by the new management team 
that these grades will improve again at the next inspection.  We received 
very positive feedback from the Care Inspector on the proactive actions we 
have taken and although we had not fully met all aspects of the 
requirement relating to training from the last inspection, due to a lack of 
training being available, they could see the efforts that have been made to 
meet the requirement.
  
The reduction in Quality of Staffing from a 4 to a 3 was as a direct result of 
some recruitment and registration of staff processes requiring updating and 
the Service Management team have been working with both the Registered 
Managers and our Scottish Borders Council colleagues to review these 
processes.  These changes will have a positive affect across all registered 
services.

We have had some concerns regarding the leadership and management 
within the care home and due to this there has been a temporary 
Management team working in the care home for the past few months.  This 
was communicated to the Care Inspectorate, who have been very 
complimentary about the new Management team and the work already 
carried out to improve the Management and Leadership with in the service.

During the Deanfield inspection the Inspector raised that processes during 
recruitment and the registration of workers with the Scottish Social 
Services Council would benefit from improvement.  This was already an 
action that the Service Management team had identified and they are 
working with the Registered Managers and colleagues in Scottish Borders 
Council who administer the recruitment process for SB Cares to ensure all 
guidance is being adhered to.

Page 108



Major Contracts Governance Group – 12 July 2018

Approved by

Name Philip Barr Signature …………………..
Title Managing Director, SB Cares

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Lynne Crombie Operations Director

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various 
computer formats by contacting the address below.  You can also request information 
on other language translations as well as the provision additional copies.

Contact us at info@sbcares.co.uk

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5 SB Cares Financial Position 2018-19 Update
	6 Members' Report and Unaudited Financial Statements 2017-18
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Members Report and Unaudited Financial Statements 201718 - SB Supports LLP
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Members Report and Unaudited Financial Statements 201718 - SB Cares LLP

	7 SB Cares Projects 2018-19 Update
	8 Care Inspection
	12 Minute
	13 Commercial Development Update

